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1

2

3 PROCEEDI NGS

4 MR, ZURCOFF: Good evening, |adies and
5 gentlemen. I|I'mcalling to order this neeting of the
6 Zoning Board of Appeals. M nanme is Mark Zuroff.

7 apol ogi ze for keeping you waiting a few m nutes.

8 Brookline hasn't done anything to anmeliorate the

9 traffic onthe way to the town hall. So with that
10 being said, we are here this evening for a neeting
11  concerning the project called Puddi ngstone 265-299
12  Cerry Road. Tonight, well, first, let me introduce
13 board nenbers sitting with ne for the record. To ny
14 left is Lark Palerno, to her left is Christopher

15 Hussey, and we have Polly Sel koe fromthe Pl anning
16  Departnent here.

17 | remnd everyone who wi shes to speak
18 tonight that it is being recorded, as all of our

19 hearings are, and so that if you wish to speak for the
20 record, does that m crophone work?
21 AUDI ENCE MEMBER:  No.
22 MR. ZUROFF: No. Then just shout it
23 out. W want to hear you, and we want to nmake sure
24  that we have an accurate transcription.
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1 MS. STEINFELD: Oh, so it technically
2 isn't being recorded; it is being transcribed.

3 MR, ZUROFF:. Transcri bed.

4 MS. STEINFELD: And we're not on

5 television.

6 MR ZUROFF: We're not on television.

7 1'mglad to hear that. | didn't do nmy makeup.

8 So that being said, the agenda for this
9 evening is that we will have -- we have before us a
10  proposed decision, which includes the proposed waivers
11 that we've already discussed. It is nmy intention to
12  go through the decision paragraph by paragraph to see
13  whether the board nenbers have any conments on it, to
14  hear --

15 MS. SELKCE: Though you may renmenber at
16 our last hearing, | did read through each one of the
17  conditions.

18 MR, ZUROFF: (kay. But at the time, we
19  had not had a chance to --

20 MS. SELKOCE: Well, it hadn't been

21  online.

22 MR, ZUROFF: And it hadn't been

23 available to --

24 MS. SELKOE: But it is now and al so
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1 online hadn't been all the attachments, which are

2 there now So at the last hearing people fromthe

3 public couldn't comment because they hadn't been

4  online.

5 MR, ZUROFF. Right. And | have sone

6 coments on them too. So I'd like to go through the
7 decision. W're not going to read the entire

8 decision, but we're going to go through it paragraph
9 Dby paragraph. |If the board has any coments, they can
10 nmake them We will then hear fromthe devel opnent

11 team if they have any coments or questions. W wl
12 also hear fromthe public as to the decision itself.
13 And then we'll discuss whether we're going to conme to
14 a final decision tonight. W my, depending on

15 whether the tine allows.

16 So without any further delay, |ady and
17 gentleman, you want to go through the decision, you
18 may have sonme comments. If you do, let's hear them
19 MS. PALERMO  Well, | have actually --
20 1'd like to get a better understanding as to the
21 nunmber of units --
22 MS. STEINFELD: A little bit |ouder,
23  pl ease.
24 M5. PALERMO A little |ouder, okay.
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1 M5. SELKCE: You know, because the

2 systemin back makes so much noi se.

3 M5. PALERMO. kay. The nunber of units
4 in Hancock Village, according to this decision, is 789
5 with 530 in Brookline. And | keep in mnd the fact

6 that we do have this entire project that this is a

7 piece that fitsinit. And in the third paragraph of
8 the findings, there is an explanation of what was part
9 of the original or what was the original project, and
10 that it would create 230 units of housing, correct?

11 MR, ZUROFF: That's what it says.

12 MS. PALERMO.  And then the new proposal,
13 which is what 1'd |ike confirmation of, the proposal
14 we're dealing with now, has included withinit --

15 MR, SCHWARTZ: Paragraph two of the

16 findings was the original project and paragraph two

17 thirty is the revised project.

18 MS. PALERMO.  Thank you. Sorry, |

19 msspoke. It was 226. I'msorry, | msspoke, 226,
20 and then this new proposal is 230. And the reason |I'm
21 raising this is |'ve heard on several occasions from
22 the neighborhood that the nunmber of units is actually
23 increasing, and unless my math is wong, if you | ook
24 at all of Hancock Village, this proposal is fewer
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1 units than the one that was originally proposed, and
2 that's why | want confirmation

3 And 1'Il tell you how | got there, and
4  maybe you can correct ne if |I'mwong.

5 Originally, you proposed 226 rental

6 units and that included 186 in the large building and
7 12 in the new apartnment units, and you were renovating
8 28 apartnents in 3 existing two-story buildings, and
9 that's how you came up with 226.

10 Now, you're building a new building --
11 your proposal is to build a new building that wll

12 continue -- let ne find the nunber.

13 MR, ZURCFF: Two hundred and ei ght een
14 units.

15 MS. PALERMO.  Two hundred and ei ght een
16 and twelve in the new construction, and you are

17  denolishing three buildings.

18 MR LEVIN. Cnh, yes, absolutely.

19 MS. PALERMO.  You're denolishing three
20 buildings, and those three buildings, as | understand
21 it, have a total of -- where is the total? | think
22 it's 22.
23 MR, SCHWARTZ: Twenty-two.
24 MS. PALERMO. Twenty-two units, fourteen
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1 of which are in Brookline.

2 MR LEVIN. Correct.

3 M5. PALERMO. So if | take 230 and |

4 subtract 14, | end up with a total of 216 units in

5 Brookline. |If | subtract the full 22, then | end up

6 at Hancock Village with a proposal, in essence, to add
7 208 units which is -- am| mssing sonething? Wich

8 is less than 226 units.

9 MR LEVIN. That's correct.

10 M5. PALERMO. That's what | wanted to
11 know. So I'mlooking at this as | have said

12 previously as a whol e devel opnent, a piece of whichis
13 the 40B and what inpact does that -- this 40B have on
14 the whol e devel opnent, the traffic, the pedestrian

15 traffic, the nmotor vehicle traffic, all of that is

16 driven by the nunber of units. So in fact, the nunber
17 of units really is less than what you originally

18 proposed to do; is that right? Because you're

19  denolishing three buildings.
20 MR SCHWARTZ: | think it's right.
21 MS. PALERMO.  Maybe not.
22 MR LEVIN. The way you say it is right.
23 MR SCHWARTZ: But there's one thing
24 just to be clear about it. In the original proposal
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1 there was the renovation -- part of that proposal was
2 the renovation of 28 buildings.

3 MS. PALERMO  Which wasn't really

4 adding.

5 MR, SCHWARTZ: R ght, so when we tal ked
6 about 226 total units, that included 28 renovated

7 units. So those units exist but they were being

8 renovat ed.

9 MR, ZUROFF. So the net --

10 MR, SCHWARTZ: So the net is -- so if
11  you really wanted to be totally apples to apples in
12 ternms of the total nunber of new units, | think your
13 analysis is correct. The total nunber of new units in
14 our proposal now after you take out the denolition is
15 208, Hancock Village as a whol e.

16 If you | ook at the total nunber of new
17 units in the original proposal, new units, in other

18 words that would be -- | believe it's 196 because the
19 28 that you're referring to are existing units that

20  woul d' ve been renovat ed.

21 MS. PALERMO.  Right.

22 MR. SCHWARTZ: So the point is it's not
23 -- you can look at it in any nunber of ways. It's --
24  frommy own point of view, it's pretty much a wash in
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1 terns of the total nunber of units, but | just want to
2 be clear that as a response to the way you were

3 analyzing it.

4 MS. PALERMO.  Thank you. No, well, | was
5 doing this quickly this afternoon, and | thought, "Am
6 | doing this right?" But you're right because -- but

7 it does seemto be al nost equivalent the |ong and

8 short of this, then. Ckay.

9 MR. ZUROFF: The original proposed as
10 opposed to this one?

11 MS. PALERMO. Correct.

12 MR, ZURCFF: Gkay. | think you have the
13 nunbers right. That's all |'ll say.

14 M5. PALERMO.  Thank you. That was

15 actually the only coment | have.

16 MR ZURCFF: Al right. I"'mgoing to go
17  through. M question on -- with regard to paragraph
18 five was it refers to twenty percent of the units in
19 the budget for rental by househol ds earning at or
20 below fifty percent of the Boston area nedian incone.
21 My clarification question is this.
22 Boston area nedian i ncome enconpasses how | arge an
23 area? It's not just --
24 MR SCHWARTZ: It's technically the
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1  Boston/Canbridge/ Quincy netropolitan statistical area,

2 which is the HUD determ nation for what our

3 metropolitan statistical area is essentially in the

4 Geater Boston area. That's howit's referred to

5 technically. I'msorry? Yeah, it's nost of eastern

6 -- it's the bulk of what we would call Geater

7  Boston/Eastern Massachusetts not including, you know,

8 the South -- South Shore or North Shore, clearly,

9 Wrcester County or west, but that's the whole area
10 that we're talking about. |If you drew a line pretty
11 nuch, you know, from Quincy going up, probably to, you
12 know, | would say Chel sea, you know, that area and
13 kind of --

14 MR, ZURCFF:. Inside 128, basically.

15 MR, SCHWARTZ: Inside 128. That's

16 pretty much consistent.

17 MR, ZUROFF: My point in asking that is
18 the calculations are based not on Brookline or Newt on
19 but on the entire area, which does make it a little
20 bit nore affordable conparatively to Brookline.

21 just wanted to be clear on that.

22 And ny next question has to do with in
23 paragraph eight it says that this is considered a

24 single lot. Has there been already a subdivision?
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Was there a need for approval for the subdivision that
created this lot?

MR, SCHWARTZ: No, it's by a 99-year
ground | ease which is part of our -- under the
Br ookl i ne zoning, 99 ground |ease is considered to a
separate |lot for zoning purposes.

M5. SELKOE: But is there such as a
ground | ease there?

MR. SCHWARTZ: There is a proposal to
enter into a ground | ease which woul d be consunmat ed
before we start.

MR ZUROFF: So that would have to be a
precondition to the issuance of this permt, no? It's
not in the conditions, but | think it should be added.

Ckay. Moving on, any other -- | have a
comrent on nunber 12. Do you have anythi ng?

MS. PALERMO.  No.

MR ZUROFF: This is the first reference
in the decision to the alternative project, and I'm
wonderi ng whether this |anguage actual ly depicts what
was di scussed and what we've all sort of understood,
because | understand you intend to apply for the
necessary permts for the alternative devel opnent. |

did not understand originally, and maybe | missed it,
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1 that that alternative plan was that you were creating
2 36 newunits, or you're renovating 36 new units?

3 MR, SCHWARTZ: Creating.

4 MR ZUROFF: And where was that?

5 MR LEVIN. In place of the Gerry

6 garage.

7 MR, ZUROFF: Onh, so it's replacing the
8 garage. Al right. Maybe | m ssed that.

9 MR. SCHWARTZ: But it's the renoval of
10 what we call the infill building. So those three

11 buildings --

12 MR. ZUROFF: No, | understand the three
13 -- the twelve units are disappearing as part of that,
14  but | didn't understand, and naybe | mssed it, that
15 you're adding thirty-six new units. But they're on
16 another parcel, correct? Ckay.

17 | n paragraph one of the conditions,

18 nowhere in here -- | know you're doing something with
19 Boston -- you're denolishing a building in Boston.
20  Should this not be subject to Boston approval for the
21 denolition of a building there?
22 MR. SCHWARTZ: We added -- there was a
23 condition added | believe that all the necessary
24  approval s woul d be obtained fromthe city of Boston.
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1 MS. SELKCE: R ght. | think we added it
2 towards the end.

3 MR ZUROFF: | may have missed that. |
4 do recall a paragraph that refers to all necessary

5 approvals fromall authorities.

6 MR, SCHWARTZ: Yeah, | think we added

7 specifically a reference to the city of Boston in

8 that, but I'Il try and find it.

9 AUDI ENCE MEMBER: It's on page 13, item
10 J of 35J.

11 MR, SCHWARTZ: Yes. Thank you.

12 MR, ZURCFF: Oh, okay. It is covered.
13 Thank you. Sorry. Al right. Let's keep going.

14 My question on nunber seven, | know you
15 give preference to Brookline residents for the

16 affordable units. It says up to 70 percent. |s that
17 standard or can we require 70 percent?

18 MS. SELKCE: Wi ch nunber are you on?
19 MR, ZUROFF: Number -- paragraph seven,
20 top of page seven.
21 MS. SELKCE: Alison, | don't know you
22 answered that.
23 M5. STEINFELD: | believe it's standard
24 | anguage that we used in the past.
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1 MR ZUROFF: So it's a preference, but
2 it's not a requirenent?

3 MR SCHWARTZ: Yeah.

4 MS. STEINFELD: It can't be a

5 requirenent.

6 MR, SCHWARTZ: If | could just -- DHCD -
7 - the town -- the process is the town needs to submt
8 kind of a justification for a |ocal preference, and

9 then DHCD or the subsidizing agency has to approve

10 that, and, you know, what the rationale is and how

11  local preference is defined. And | think it's

12 typically up to 70 percent, so it's not a mandate for
13 70 percent. But the concern that the state has is

14 that fair housing -- in comng up with a | ocal

15 preference -- that fair housing requirenents are net,
16 so in terms of, you know, diversity of the popul ation
17 that lives in the affordable units. So they wll

18 review the town subm ssion. |'mnot sure if the town
19 has nade a submission for |local preference in the

20  past.

21 MS. STEI NFELD:  Yes.

22 MR. SCHWARTZ: For permt projects but
23 presumably it will be a simlar exercise. But thisis
24  the standard | anguage that is used.
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1 MS. STEINFELD: It's a difficult

2 threshold to make, but we've been able to make it so
3 far.

4 MR, ZUROFF:. Ch, all right.

5 MS. STEINFELD: But, obviously, there
6 are no assurances, but the state is very strict about
7 it.

8 MR, ZUROFF. Al right. | appreciate

9 that it's standard, and, you know, obviously, it's ny
10 preference that as much of the popul ation can be | ocal
11 as could be.

12 On nunber 13, | know that it says that
13 the buildings in the project shall conformto the

14  architectural plans. |Is that specific enough? O

15 should we say that the building plans will conform as
16 closely as possible to the architectural

17  preservation --

18 MS. SELKCE: Well, actually, | mean,
19 think you' ve raised a good point. Perhaps we shoul d
20 have a date to review the plan.
21 MR. ZURCFF: In as nuch specificity as
22  possible.
23 MR, SCHWARTZ: Well, the architectural
24  plans are actually defined on page two of the
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1 decision. So there's a specific reference to in the
2 plan set of July 13, 2018 as the final plan set for

3 the architectural. So those are defined.

4 MR. ZUROFF: Those are the |ast ones

5 that we have seen?

6 MR, SCHWARTZ: Correct.

7 MR, ZUROFF: But, again, | think for

8 clarification, it should be that rather than saying

9 the buildings in the project and the units in the

10 building shall conformto the architectural plans,

11 that the building plans thenselves will be in

12 conpliance with the architectural presentations that
13 we've had, those plans. | nean, all we have is the
14  pictures, which are nice, but, you know, the building
15 plans thensel ves, which you're actually getting a

16 permt for, should be -- could be -- should be the

17 sanme or matchup with the architectural plans. | would
18 assume that's not a problem but it doesn't actually
19 say that.
20 MR. SCHWARTZ: | have no objection. W
21 don't have an objection to doing that. | think the
22 intent of this language is the first sentence says,
23  "\Wen you build these buildings, they have to be in
24  accordance with these plans that you' ve submtted."
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1 MR ZUROFF: Wich inplies that --

2 MR SCHWARTZ: Well, then the second

3 sentence, "Well, howis the town going to assure

4 itself that that's the case?" And what the second

5 sentence in this condition says is, "The way the town
6 is going to assure itself that that's the case is that
7 the applicant has to submt final plans for review for
8 consistency with the plans that we submtted as part

9 of this process.”" So that was the intent. But if you
10 want to change the |anguage al ong the |ines of what

11  you said, we certainly have no objection.

12 MR ZURCFF: |'m open --

13 MS. STEINFELD: | would suggest that's
14 it's stronger -- it's witten in the buildings, the
15 actual buildings as opposed to just the plans.

16 MR, ZURCFF: Yeah, but they're going for
17 a permt to build, and the only thing that they get

18 approval for is the plans for those buildings. |

19 understand the end result is the sane, but, you know,
20 after they've built it, it's too late to say, well,
21 they don't conmply. |I'mjust trying to be as clear as
22  possible.
23 At the same point on nunmber 17, the
24  final landscaping plans, are they subject to
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1  sonebody's approval ? They're consistent, but who

2 actually signs off on thenf

3 MR SCHWARTZ: That woul d be the

4  planning director.

5 MS. STEINFELD: For review and approval ?
6 MR ZURCOFF: Yes.

7 M5. PALERMO.  Yes, to determ ne that

8 they're consistent with the plans that were presented
9 to us, which is typical

10 MR ZUROFF: And it's typical. Again
11  point of clarification on paragraph 23, "Applicant to
12 certify by the fire chief and building conm ssioner

13 that the buildings have been enhanced w th sprinkler
14  systens, et cetera." Does it go beyond that? Do they
15 actually inspect it to make sure that they do actually
16 have -- are certifying that they have?

17 MR. HUSSEY: They do that to sign off on
18 the building permt closed out the buil ding departnent
19 does do inspection.
20 M5. SELKCE: For certificate of
21  occupancy, they'll comne in.
22 MR, ZURCFF: No, | know that's probably
23 the case but | didn't see it here. Just whether it
24  shoul d be subject to the final inspection by the fire
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1 departnent or chief inspector or whonever has

2 jurisdiction.

3 MR SCHWARTZ: Just as a point of

4 information, for a project like this, we kind of use

5 the termin the trade it's going to be controlled

6 construction, which Chris may be aware of that term

7 SO0 what that neans is that it's reliant on

8 certifications fromaqualified professionals to the

9 town on a regular basis as to conpliance, and the town
10 -- not to say that they don't have their own

11  inspectors and inspections, they do, but they rely on
12 those certifications. They're really affidavits under,
13 you know, serious --

14 MR ZURCFF: If that's normal practice,
15 that's fine. | just figured --

16 MR HUSSEY: It is a nornal practice in
17  ny experience.

18 MR ZUROFF: (Ckay. Then it doesn't need
19 any further clarification.

20 | already asked that question about the
21 demolition

22 You can junp in at any time. |'mnoving
23  through ny notes. Number 29, | just | know it applies
24 to stormdrains and control and nosquito control. |
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1 don't know, and maybe the people in charge do, whether
2 that includes nonitoring the horse sanctuary to make

3 sure that there's no runoff -- unnecessary runoff,

4  over-runoff of pesticides or whatever.

5 MS. SELKCE: Specifically, you nean for
6 the pesticides --

7 MR ZUROFF: Right.

8 M5. SELKOE: -- not for the water.

9 MR. ZUROFF: And drainage. | nean, it's
10 all part of the plan.

11 M5. SELKCE: Right.

12 MR, ZURCFF: And, again, if it's not

13  necessary |'mjust asking the question.

14 MS. SELKCE: Well, | think the point is
15 if it runs off, it would runoff in the water as you

16 said, and the drainage plan is going to be reviewed to
17 make sure -- and it's already been --

18 MR ZURCFF: It's been vetted.

19 MS. SELKCE: -- vetted by the peer
20 consultant.
21 MR, ZURCFF: (Okay. So there's no further
22 testing necessary. Any other comments? |'m noving
23 ahead.
24 On paragraph 44 having to do with
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1 nonitoring the wear-and-tear on the roads. |s there
2 an affirmative duty on the part of the devel oper

3 should there be discovered that there's damage to the
4  roadways that they repair then

5 MS. SELKCE: There typically is. It

6 says, "Then again prior to issuance of a Certificate
7 of Cccupancy to ensure construction traffic does not

8 adversely affect the pavenent.” So at that time they
9 wouldn't get the CEO unless the pavenent was --

10 MR ZUROFF: (kay. Again, for

11 clarification, | just wanted to nake sure even though
12 it's inplied, and it's held over their heads that they
13 have an affirmative duty to make repairs as necessary.
14 MS. SELKCE: Yes.

15 MR ZUROFF: But we'll leave it alone.
16 MS. SELKCE: Yeah, | think, you know,
17 they won't get the CEO unless it's done.

18 MR, ZUROFF: On paragraph 61. Just as a
19 matter of clarification, again, |I'mpresumng that
20  because the developer is in theory proposing an
21 alternative plan that whatever construction is
22 commenced will comrence with the big building before
23 they start building the infill buildings because their
24 at least expressed intent is not to build the infill
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bui | di ngs.
M5. SELKCE: | think that was their
i ntent.

MR LEVIN. The big -- the so-called

MR ZUROFF: The Shernman buil di ng.
MR LEVIN. The Sherman building. You're

asking --

© oo ~ » (@] & w N -
L
=
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MR ZUROFF: | mean, you're going to be

10 doing -- | don't knowif the timng of the relative --
11  you haven't filed yet, as | understand it. So you're
12 going to start the project once you get this permt.
13 MR LEVIN  Yes.

14 MR SCHWARTZ: So it is theoretically at
15 | east possible that we be -- build the Shernan

16  building before starting and quite possible before

17 starting the alternative project, in which case that's
18 what we would do and once --

19 MR ZUROFF: | nean, it makes sense for
20 you, if you're pursuing the other project, not to

21 start construction on buildings that may not be built
22 soon.

23 MR LEVIN. Correct.

24 MR. SCHWARTZ: Onh, yeah, if your
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1 question is would we build the project that you're

2 approving while we're still pursuing the alternative
3 project, the answer is clearly no.

4 MR LEVIN.  You nean the 12 units.

5 MR. SCHWARTZ: Yeah, the 12 units.

6 nean, respectfully, | don't think you need to say that
7  because we would --

8 MR, ZUROFF: No, it's a question for

9 clarification. Theoretically, this permt gives you
10 the right to start construction everywhere. You nmay
11 be clearing the site where it may not have to be

12 cleared, and, again, | don't knowthat it needs to be
13 specified because as you say it doesn't make sense for
14 you to do things. On the other hand, it doesn't say
15 that.

16 MR, SCHWARTZ: Well, in part the way
17 they ended up with this language was trying to be

18 responsive to sonething you said at a prior hearing
19 which is that you want to be careful that the board
20 was not directing the applicant to pursue the other
21 project, or just acknow edgi ng that we were pursuing
22 the other project, and if we obtained the approvals
23 for it, then we would be com ng back here for
24  nodification of this term
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1 MR ZUROFF: For nodification.

2 MR SCHWARTZ: So that's where we ended
3 up, which | think is fine. If you had seen fit to

4 say, well, we direct you to pursue that other

5 project --

6 MR, ZURCFF: | wouldn't presune to do

7  that.

8 MR, SCHWARTZ: Then it could have led to
9 you're saying, and you won't build this first project
10 until you finish the process of the other one.

11 MR. ZUROFF: Because as a practical

12 matter, | amsure you will do what is practical but,
13 again, this permt allows you to do whatever you want
14  under this permt. Mybe |'mjust expressing

15 thoughts, but anyway.

16 On nunmber 63 having to do with the

17  playgrounds. Now, this is the alternative plan versus
18 the presented plan.

19 MR LEVIN. Actually, there are smal

20 images here. | have themon the big screen.

21 MR ZUROFF: The plans?

22 MR. LEVIN. Yeah, but they are in the
23 back.

24 MS. SELKCE: They're in an attachment.
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1 MR ZUROFF: No, no, |'ve seen the plan.
2 I'mfine with that. |'mjust wondering it says,

3 "Construction of such playground shall be

4 substantially conpleted within one year of the date of
5 the issuance to the final certificate of occupancy."”

6 By that tinme presumably you will determ ne which

7 playground you're going to build, but ny question is
8 what if it's not built within a year?

9 MR LEVIN.  Well, | think that that

10 question applies to a nunber of these conditions. For
11  instance, what cones to mind is within reaching 90

12 percent occupancy | think it is, we have to conduct a
13 traffic study, and then if issues are raised in that
14  study that there's sone noney to mtigate, you know,
15 you can ask the same question, what if we didn't do
16 that after you have your CEQ There's a few of those
17 in there. W' re supposed to do post --

18 MR ZUROFF: Yeah, | see them as

19 potential dead ends.
20 MS. SELKCE: This isn't prior to the
21 issuance of a building permt.
22 MS. PALERMO. No, it's prior to the
23 issuance -- well, | would assune if they failed to
24  performany of these conditions that the town would
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1 have a cause of action against the devel oper.

2 MR LEVIN. Wuld that not be true with
3 any?

4 MR ZUROFF: No, |'msure it is. [|'m
5 just wondering what kind of enforcenments, and maybe

6 |'mjust, again, asking questions | don't know the

7 answers to. I'mjust interested to know.

8 MS. SELKCE: The enforcenent is by the
9 building comm ssioner, and, | nmean, let's say that

10 they haven't rented all the units, then the building
11 conm ssioner would nake them stop until this was

12 conpletely fulfilled.

13 MR ZUROFF: (kay. Again, it was a what-
14 if question.

15 MR LEVIN. So we don't like to cross
16  the building conm ssioner because he's got all kinds
17 of tools that he can apply that enforce --

18 THE COURT REPORTER: Can you just speak
19 up alittle bit?
20 MR LEVIN. | said we don't like to
21 cross the building inspector because he has all kinds
22 of mechanisms to make our lives mserable if we do
23 sonmething |ike that.
24 MR ZUROFF: And | also know his plate
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1 is fairly full, so he doesn't want to be involved in
2 the enforcenent of these things.

3 MR LEVIN: Nor do we.

4 MR ZURCFF. Al right. That's the

5 summation of ny findings. | appreciate your clarifying
6 sone of ny questions, but beyond those matters, |

7 really don't have any issues.

8 MS. SELKOE: Do you want me to sum up
9 what needs to be altered or nodified?

10 MR, ZUROFF:. |f you would like to, |
11 would appreciate it.

12 MS. SELKOE: | think under the

13 conditions you want us to add the findings under

14 nunber eight. Under nunber eight the findings, you
15 want us to put that in as a condition and that is a
16  99-year |ease has to be conpleted before they start
17  buil di ng.

18 MR, ZUROFF: Right. As a question, a
19 99-year |ease should it be recorded in the registry of
20  deeds?

21 MR. SCHWARTZ: Well, a notice of the
22 | ease would be recorded --

23 MS. STEINFELD: Could the attorneys in
24 the roomdraft that condition right now?
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1 MR ZUROFF: Can we drop that condition?
2 M5. STEINFELD: Draft -- wite it.

3 Provide the actual |anguage.

4 MR SCHWARTZ:  Yep.

5 MS. STEINFELD: We could go back to it
6 if you want.

7 MR ZUROFF: W know what it is.

8 M5. SELKOE: We coul d have town

9 counsel --

10 MR, ZURCFF: So | anguage coul d be

11  provided by the petitioner's counsel.

12 MS. STEINFELD: Does that satisfy you?
13 MR. ZURCFF: | think so. As long as we
14  know we're dealing with the same issue, and it's

15 fairly clear.

16 MS. STEINFELD: Okay. | just want to

17 make sure you're confortable that they draft the

18 | anguage.

19 M5. SELKOE: And then condition of

20  nunber 13 which was under architecture, do you want us
21 to add the word plans under buildings, building plans?
22 MR ZUROFF: Yes.

23 M5. SELKCE: And under nunber 17.

24 MS. PALERMO. Can | stop for --
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1 MS. SELKCE:  Sure.

2 MR ZUROFF: O course.

3 M5. PALERMO.  Now, nunber 13, | thought
4 we left it as is because we want the buildings to

5 conformto the plans.

6 MR, ZURCFF: Ch, we want the buil dings
7 and the plans.

8 M5. PALERMO. But the second sentence,

9 as Alison pointed out, provides that the plans have to
10 be submtted to her, and then she has to determ ne

11 that they conformto the plans, so we've covered --

12 MR ZUROFF: Chris, correct me if |I'm
13 wong, the building plans are nore conprehensive than
14  sinply the architectural plans.

15 MR HUSSEY: No, well, the architectural
16 plans are submtted to the various boards |ike the

17  building inspector to get approval.

18 MR, ZUROFF: So they have all the

19 details in then?
20 MR, HUSSEY: Yeah.
21 MR LEVIN. So the way | understand this
22 to work --
23 MS. STEINFELD: Can you talk | ouder?
24 MR LEVIN. The way | understand this to
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1 work is that you have a set of schenatic plans that

2 we've taken it to a schematic level, and that we've

3 all agreed that this is the building that is going to
4 be built. The next step would be to do construction

5 docunents, CDs and we submit those CDs not only for

6 the building inspector to see if they conply with code
7 but to the planning director to make sure that the

8 plans conformto the plan set that goes along wth

9 this.

10 MR. ZURCFF: So altogether, are those
11  considered the architectural plans?

12 MR LEVIN  Yes.

13 MR, ZURCFF:. They are.

14 MS. SELKCE: | nean, in a way you

15 wouldn't need that first sentence at all because the
16 second sentence covers --

17 M5. PALERMO. | think if for some reason
18 this is necessary for the building inspector,

19 wouldn't take the sentence out because the buil ding
20 inspector inspects the building and says, actually,
21 this didn't come out exactly. You've put in three
22 staircases instead of two. |'mjust saying
23 hypothetically.
24 MR LEVIN. They would ook at it before
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1 to nmake sure it's confornmed.

2 M5S. PALERMO.  And they'll look at it

3 during construction

4 MS. SELKCE: So we're not adding plans
5 to the first sentence.

6 M5. PALERMO. | woul d not.

7 M5. SELKOE: Because it's in the second,
8 is that agreed?

9 MR ZUROFF: I'mfine with that if

10 that's enconpassed within the definition

11 M5. SELKCE: And on nunber 17, we are
12 adding the word and approval. So the applicant shall

13  submt final landscaping plans to the planning

14 director who wll review an approval to determ ne that
15 they are consistent with site plans listed initem3
16  under procedural history.

17 MR ZUROFF: Yes. That's it? So that's
18 the end of the board' s commrents.

19 MR LEVIN. [I'mjust finishing the
20 condition that Alison ..
21 MR, ZURCFF: Well, you can take your
22 tinme. W can go to the public.
23 M5. SELKCE: He's fast.
24 MS. STEINFELD: Could you read it to the
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1 board? Just make sure that they --

2 M5. SELKCE: O course.

3 MR, SCHWARTZ: If you want nme to --

4 MS. SELKCE: It's pretty clear. | think
5 | could have read his handwiting.

6 MR SCHWARTZ: Well, thank you. That's
7 very nice of you to say. "Prior to the conmencenent

8 of construction, the applicants shall have entered

9 into a ground lease of the site creating the |ot

10 referenced in item8 of the findings, and shall record
11  with Norfolk Registry of Deeds a notice of said ground
12 |l ease. The applicant shall provide evidence to the

13 planning director of the recording of the notice of

14  ground | ease."

15 MR, ZURCFF: Yeah, | guess that wll

16  work.

17 Al'l right. Thank you. Public comments
18 about the decision or the waivers? There are none.

19  Ckay.
20 M5. ALLAIRE: |'m Saralynn Allaire from
21 the town neeting, and | just want to reiterate the
22 town neeting nenbers' objection to the project based
23 on size, that's in termof the nunber of units. And |
24 think you're wanting to take a whol e Hancock Village
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1 approach, so you need to think about the other

2 devel opnents that are going on and proposed in

3 addition to this one.

4 Also, the infill buildings, you know,

5 are just conpletely out of place. Your consultant, as
6 | recall, said that they interfered with the flow of

7 the whole project. | realize they may go at sone

8 point. And then the single building is just massive

9 in size, both in terms of footprint and height. So |
10 just would -- and Steve has previously said that there
11 is precedent for reducing the size of a project by a
12 group such as yours, and so | just ask that you

13  consider that.

14 MR ZUROFF:. Well, | appreciate your

15 comment. W've always been aware of the public's

16 feeling about the project, but | do think that we have
17  had our peer reviewers review everything. The density
18 of the project, the nunber of units and the size of

19 the project is sonething that we did consider, we did
20 get it to be smaller, but in ny opinion, we have taken
21 all of that into consideration given the mandate that
22 was given to us by the statute. And in ny opinion, in
23 spite of the fact that | may al so have objections to
24  excise, the statute nmandates what we have gone
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1 through. Qur peer reviewers have given us the

2 feedback that we were required to get, and | think

3 that we have reached an am cabl e deci sion based on

4  what we have been given to work with.

5 \What ny personal feelings are, what your
6 personal feelings are have sone bearing, but not

7 enough to overturn the statute. That's ny opinion

8 Based on what we have, | think that

9 unless we have sonething else to deal with this

10 evening, and subject to the revisions that have been
11  proposed for the final decision, the board can express
12 their opinions on whether they want to accept this as
13 the decision of the board or not, and it has to be

14  unaninous or majority. It's a majority.

15 MR, SCHWARTZ: M understanding is that
16 in a 40B decision -- in a 40A decision when you have a
17  three-menber board it has to be unanimous. In a 40B
18 decision, it can be tw out of the three.

19 MR HUSSEY: | stand corrected.
20 THE COURT REPORTER: | can't hear you
21 MR, HUSSEY: | stand corrected. M.
22 Schwartz is right.
23 MR ZUROFF: So, Chris?
24 MR, HUSSEY: Yes.
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1 MR ZURCFF: Yes or no?

2 MR HUSSEY: | would vote in favor.

3 MR ZUROFF: Lark?

4 M5. PALERMO. Yes, | also vote in favor
5 of the grant.

6 MR, ZURCFF: And based on your

7 interpretation of the law, notw thstanding the fact

8 that ny vote doesn't matter, | also amwlling to

9 approve the project as presented, and | do appreciate
10 that the devel oper nmade sonme conmprom ses. | sincerely
11  hope that the alternative project is pursued as has

12 been prom sed because, again, the peer reviewer did
13 recommend that the infill buildings would be -- it

14 would be better served if they weren't there. That

15 wll be subject to the sitting board, whoever it is,
16 in your pursuit of that project.

17 MS. SELKCE: So you'll have to close the
18 hearing --

19 MS. STEINFELD: Excuse ne, two things?
20 MR, ZUROFF:. Alison, of course.
21 MS. STEI NFELD: Before you close the
22 hearing. One is | just want to in the past the board
23 | believe has always voted the waivers. | don't know
24 if that's necessary. Attorney Schwartz?
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1 MR, ZURCFF: We have gone through the

2 waivers already.

3 M5. STEINFELD: But there was no vote.
4 | don't knowif it's necessary.

5 MR ZURCFF: I'Il put it to the board.
6 It'Il be on the record. Personally, | vote that we've
7 gone through the waivers. | have no objection to the
8 waivers. They're pretty nuch the same waivers that

9 were granted on a simlar project, and they have been
10 vetted by the planning and buil ding departnents.

11 M5. SELKOCE: But the building

12 conm ssioner who had actually asked to add one which
13 they did about the wdth of the (inaudible.)

14 MR ZURCFF: So with that being said, |
15 vote in favor of granting the waivers that are

16 presented as part of the decision.

17 MR. HUSSEY: | concur.

18 M5. PALERMO. | concur.

19 MR ZURCFF: So the record will show
20 that it is voted on, the waivers are approved. The
21 decision to be nodified is approved.
22 M5. STEINFELD: As nodified -- has been
23 nodified. Ch, |'msorry, yes.
24 MR, ZUROFF: There are a couple of snall
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1  tweaks.

2 MS. SELKCE: Yeah, | would think a vote
3 to authorize you to sign it whenit's in final form

4 MR ZUROFF. Well, that's why | said

5 it's subject to those nodifications. | guess | should
6 ask the board for approval. WII the board approve ny
7 signing the decision as nodified at the end?

8 MR HUSSEY: | will.

9 MS. PALERMO | will.

10 MR, ZUROFF. So that is a final vote of
11  the board. M. Levin.

12 MR LEVIN. | would just like to thank,
13 in particular, you and your board, the planning staff,
14  especially as well, the neighbors and everyone who

15 contributed to the consideration of our project, both
16 in ternms of constructive, you know, criticismand

17 other that I, you know, | sincerely believe we ended
18 up with a better project than what we came in with as
19 far ago as we did. | don't renenber. It's been a
20 couple of years now.
21 MR ZURCFF. 2016.
22 MR LEVIN. 2016. So a couple of years
23 ago wth a pause, but nonetheless, it was a |ong
24  enough process to hatch a better plan, and I want to
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1 thank everyone for that.

2 MR, ZURCFF: And | appreciate the

3 devel oper working with us. That being said, the fact
4 that it took me so long to get here is evidence that

5 the traffic is getting worse, and | w sh there were

6 less buildings going on in Brookline, but we are

7 conpelled to do our duty. So I thank you all for

8 comng. | thank the public for its input.

9 M5. SELKCE: You're officially closing
10 the hearing.

11 MR ZUROFF: | amofficially closing the
12 hearing, and this nmeeting i s now adj ourned. Thank you
13 very nuch.

14

15 (Wher eupon the hearing was concl uded at
16 7:50 p.m)

17

18

19
20
21
22
23
24

Epi g Court Reporting Sol utions - Boston
1-617-542-0039 www. deposi ti on. com


http://www.deposition.com

PROCEEDI NGS - 10/ 24/2018 Page 40

© 0 N o O A W N P

e i e o
o A W N B O

=
(o))

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

CERTI FI CATE

COVMMONVEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
COUNTY OF NORFOLK, SS

I, Christine D. Bl ankenshi p, a Professional
Court Reporter and Notary Public in and for the
Commonweal t h of Massachusetts, do hereby certify
that the foregoing hearing was taken before nme on
Cct ober 24, 2018. The said testi nobny was taken
audi ographically by nyself and then transcri bed
under ny direction. To the best of ny know edge,
the within transcript is a conplete, true and
accurate record of said deposition.

I am not connected by bl ood or marri age
wth any of the said parties, nor interested
directly or indirectly in the matter of
controversy.

In W tness wher eof, have
Aixfp;,

hand and Notary Seal thi ¢
2018. (/%A,J/\

Christine D. Bl ankenship
Not ary Public

My Comm ssi on Expires:
August 3, 2023

hereunto set ny
of Decemnber,

Epi g Court Reporting Sol utions - Boston

1-617-542-0039 www. deposi ti on. com


http://www.deposition.com

PROCEEDI NGS - 10/ 24/ 2018 i1
99 agenda
1 3 12:5 4:8
99-year ago
12 3 12:3 28:16,19 38:19,23
7:7 12:16 24:4,5 7:8 32:15
agreed
128 35J A 31:332:8
11:14,15 14:10
ahead
13 36 able 21:23
14:9 16:12 17:2 29:20 13:2 16:2 _
30:3 Alison
absolutely 14:21 30:9 32:20 36:20
14 4 7:18 _
8:4 ) Allaire
accep 33:20
17 40A 35:12
18:23 29:23 32:11 35116 allows
40B accurate 5:15 25:13
186 3:24
76 8:13 35:16,17 ) altered
' acknowledging 289
196 44 24:21 .
9:18 21:24 _ alternative
action 12:19,23 13:1 22:21
) 5 27:1 23:17 24:2 25:17 36:11
a‘ig‘g sor3 altogether
2016 530 - : 31:10
38:21,22 6:5 add ameliorate
8:6 28:13 29:21 37:12 38
2018 )
17:2 6 added amicable
12:14 13:22,23 14:1,6 35:3
208 61 _ -
8:7 9:15 2918 adding analysis
’ 9:4 13:15 32:4,12 9:13
216 63 N :
8:4 25:16 aggg'on analyzing
29 ; 10:3
7:22 85 7 adjourned answer
39:12 .
226 24:3
6:19 7:5,98:8 9:6 70 adversely answered
23 14:16,17 15:12,13 22:8 14:22
19:11 789 affect ANSWers
. 22:8 :
230 6:4 > 27:7
6:10,20 8:3 affidavits anyway
20:12 .
265_299 8 . . 25.15
311 affirmative apartment
8 22:2,13 7:7
28 33:10
7:89:2,6,19 affordable apartments
- 11:20 14:16 15:17 7.8
9
20:23 afternoon apologize
10:5 37
90 )
26:11 agency Appeals
15:9
Epi q Court Reporting Solutions - Boston

1-617-542-0039

www. deposi ti on. com



http://www.deposition.com

PROCEEDI NGS - 10/ 24/ 2018 i 2
3:6 assure board call
apples 18:3,6 3:6,13 4:13 5:9 24:19 11:6 13:10
11 35:11,13,17 36:1
9:11 attachment 223323§611126 S called
. 25:24 ' e 3:11
applicant board's _
18:7 19:11 24:20 32:12 attachments 3218 calling
33:12 5:1 ' 35
. r
applicants Attorney bgg‘_lis can't
33:8 36:24 ‘ 15:4 35:20
applies attorneys Boston careful
20:23 26:10 28:23 ;ﬁgjiz 11:413:19.20, | “419
apply AUDIENCE : case
12:22 27:17 3:21 14:9 BO.Stonlcamb”dge/ 18:4,6 19:23 23:17
quincy
appreciate authorities 11:1 cause
16:8 28:5,11 34:14 36:9 14:5 Boston/ t 27:1
39:2 ) oston/eastern
authorize 11:7 CDSs
approach 38:3 Brookline 315
34:1 .
available 3:86:58:1,511:18,20 CEO
approval 4:23 12:5 14:15 39:6 22:9,17 26:16
12:113:2018:1819:15 | budget certainly
30:17'32:12,14 38:6 206 34:15 10:19 18:11
Ao iz build certificate
' R B 7:11 17:23 18:17 22:24 19:20 22:6 26:5
agslgoglgg - 23:15 24:1 25:9 26:7 certifications
s back =~ building 20:8,12
approved 6:224:23 25:23 29:5 7:6,10,11 13:10,19,21 certif
37:20,21 based 16115 17:10,11,14 Sos
approving 11:18 33:22 35:3,8 36:6 19:12,18 22:22,23 23:6, o
02 , 7,16 26:21 27:9,10,16, certifying
' basically 21 28:17 29:21 30:13, 19:16
architectural 11:14 1731:36,1819,2034:8 | ..
16:14,16,23 17:3,10,12, | pasis 37:10,11 19:14
17 30:14,15 31:11 20:9 buildings :
architecture bearing 7:8,17,20 8:19 9:2 szalgce
29:20 356 13:11 16:13 17:9,23 :
18:14,15,18 19:13 change
area believe 22:2323:1,21 29:21 18:10
10:20,22,23 11:1,3,4,9, 9:18 13:23 14:23 36:23 304 6 34-4 36:13 39:6
12,19 38:17 ' charge
built 21:1
asked better 18:20 23:21 26:8 31:4
20:20 37:12 5:20 36:14 38:18,24 Chelsea
. bulk 11:12
asking beyond 11:6
11:17 21:13 23:8 27:6 19:14 28:6 chief
. 19:12 20:1
assume b|g C
17:18 26:23 22:22 23:4 25:20 Chris
_ 20:6 30:12 35:23
assurances bit calculations _
16:6 5:22 11:20 27:19 11:18 Christopher
3:14
Epi q Court Reporting Solutions - Boston

1-617-542-0039

www. deposi ti on. com



http://www.deposition.com

PROCEEDI NGS - 10/ 24/ 2018 i3
city commissioner consistency create
13:24 147 19:12 27:9,11,16 37:12 18:8 6:10
clarification comparatively consistent created
10:21 17:8 19:11 20:19 11:20 11:16 19:1,8 32:15 12:2
22:11,19 249 . .
compelled construction creating
clarifying 39:7 7:16 20:6 22:7,21 23:21 13:1,3 33:9
28:5 24:10 26:3 31:4 32:3 e
completed 338 criticism
clear 26:4 28:16 ' 38:16
8:2410:2 11:21 18:21 completely constructive cross
29:15 33:4 27:12 34:5 38:16 27:15,21
cleared compliance consultant
24:12 17:12 209 21:20 34:5 D
clearing comply consummated
clearly comprehensive continue 22:3
11:8 24:3 30'13 7:12 date
close compromises contributed 16:20 26:4
36:17,21 ol 1po 38:15 dead
closed concern control 26:19
closely concerning controlled 35:9
closing concur correct 6:14 29:14
39:9,11 37:17.18 6:107:48:299:13 decision
code B 10:11 13:16 17:6 23:23 4:10,12 5:7,8,12,14,17
316 condition 30:12 6:4 12:19 17:1 33:18
13:2318:5 28:15,24 corrected 35:3,11,13,16,18 37:16,
come 29:1,19 32:20 35:19 21 2138:7
5:1319:21 31:21 - "
conditions couldn't deeds
comes 4:17 12:14 13:17 26:10, 5:3 28:20 33:11
26:11 24 28:13 ' .
counsel defined
comfortable conduct 29:9 11 15:11 16:24 17:3
29:17 26:12 = o
) ) ) County definition
coming confirmation 11-9 32:10
15:14 24:23 39:8 6:137:2 '
commence conform couple dg-lilg
22:22 16:131517:1030:5,11 | o -2438:20.22 o
q 31:8 course demolishing
commence 5 329 2A- 7:17,19 8:19 13:19
22:22 conformed 30:2 33:2 36:20 o
32:1 COURT demolition
commencement . 27-18 35:20 9:14 13:21 20:21
337 consider ' ' )
comment 34:13,19 covered d:Zigy
5:310:15 12:16 34:15 | consideration 14:12 30:11 '
34:21 38:15 covers department
comments _ 31:16 3:16 19:18 20:1
4:135:6,9,11,18 21:22 considered '
32:18 33:17 11:23 12:5 31:11 departments
Epi q Court Reporting Solutions - Boston

1-617-542-0039

www. deposi ti on. com



http://www.deposition.com

PROCEEDI NGS - 10/ 24/ 2018 i 4
37:10 28:1 36:8 27:8 28:2 express
depending doing enforcements oL
5:14 10:5,6 13:18 17:21 275 expressed
depicts 23:10 enhanced 22:24
12:20 don't 19:13 expressing
details 14:21 17:21 18:21 ensure 25:14
3019 20:10 21:1 23:10 24:6, 29:7
’ 12 27:6,15,20 28:7 ' F
determination 36:23 37:4 38:19 enter
112 draft 12:10 fact
determine 28:24 29:2,17 entered 6:5 8:16 34:23 36:7
19:7 26:6 30:10 32:14 drainage 33:8 39:3
developer 21:9,16 entire failed
22:2,20 27:1 36:10 39:3 drains 5:76:6 11:19 26:23
development 20:24 equivalent fair
5:108:12,14 12:23 drew 10:7 15:14,15
developments 11:10 especially fairly
34:2 driven 38:14 28:1 29:15
DHCD 8:16 essence far
15:6,9 drop 8:6 16:3 38:19
didn't 29:1 essentially fast
g:17.2113:14 19:23 26:15 duty 11:3 32:23
: 22:2,13 39:7 et favor
difficult 19:14 36:2,4 37:15
16:1 E .
evening feedback
direct 3:4,10 4:9 35:10 35:2
25:4 earr:]ing evidence fee“ng
directing 10:19 33:12 39:4 34:16
24:20
ealli.tsern exactly feelings
director : 31:21 35:5,6
19:4 31:7 32:14 33:13 eight | excise fewer
disappearing 11:23 28:14 34:24 6:24
13:13 mghteen Excuse fifty
discovered 713,15 36:19 10:20
22:3 enc9n1passed exercise figured
discuss 32:10 15:23 20:15
5:13 enc'ompasses exist filed
discussed 10:22 9:7 23:11
N eggig 25:2 38:17 existing final
diversity 117252 38: 7:89:19 5:14 17:2 18:7,24 19:24
15:16 end's experience 26:5 32:13 35:11 38:3,
documents 26:19 20:17 10
315 eanrce explanation ﬂ”g _
doesn't 27:17 6:8 7:12 14:8
17:18 20:18 24:13,14 enforcement findings
Epi q Court Reporting Solutions - Boston

1-617-542-0039

www. deposi ti on. com



http://www.deposition.com

PROCEEDI NGS - 10/ 24/ 2018 i 5
6:8,16 28:5,13,14 33:10 | give handwriting hypothetically
fine 14:15 335 31:23
20:15 25:3 26:2 32:9 given hasn't
. 34:21,22 35:1,4 3:8 |
finish
25:10 gives hatch .
o 24:9 38:24 I'D
finishing 5:6,20 6:13
32:19 glad haven't .
. 4.7 23:11 27:10 'LL
fire 7:310:13 14:8 375
19:12,24 go he's .
first 4:12 5:6,8,17 10:16 27:16 32:23 ' ';’!5 47 61920 74 811
19:14 29:5 32:22 34:7 2 4:/6:19,20 /46
3:12 12:18 17:22 25:9 5 heads 10:16 11:5 12:19 15:18
31:1532:5 goes 22:12 18:12,21 20:22 21:13,
fit 31:8 hear 22 22:19 25:14 26:2
25:3 going 3:2347,14510,12,18 | 27'46,730:1231:22
fits 5:7,8,13 10:16 11:11 35:20 32:9,19 33:20 37:23
67 14:13 18:3,6,16 20:5 heard I'VE
: 21:16 23:9,12 26:7 31:3 621 6:21 26:1
five 34:2 39:6 : _
10:18 0od hearing images
good 4:16 5:2 24:18 36:18,22 | 2920
flow 3:4 16:19 _ _
34:6 39.10,12 |mpact
grant hearings 8:13
footprint 36:5 319 ) )
349 1 implied
granted height 22:12
form 37:9 - ) )
383 _ 349 implies
grantlng held 18:1
fourteen 37:15 ] ) )
724 22:12 inaudible
Greater history 37:13
fulfilled 11:4,6 . _
57:12 32:16 included
ground hope 6:14 7:6 9:6
full 12:4,5,8,10 33:9,11,14 : _
85 281 36:11 includes
group horse 4:10 21:2
further 34:12 219 ) )
5:16 20:19 21:21 ' including
guess 11:7
) ) households
33:15 38:5 ) .
G 10:19 income
9’ housing 10:20,22
garage 6:10 15:14,15 increasing
13:6,8 hadn't HUD 6:23
gentleman 4:20,22 5:1,3 11:2 infill
5:17 hall hundred égig 22:23,24 34:4
gentlemen 3:9 7:13,15 :
3:5 Hancock Hussey ln;(()).zmatlon
Gerry 6:4,24 8:6 9:15 33:24 3:15 19:17 20:16 30:15, '
3:12 135 h d 20 35:19,21,24 36:2 input
_ an 37:17 38:8 39:8
getting 24:14
17:15 39:5
Epi q Court Reporting Solutions - Boston

1-617-542-0039

www. deposi ti on. com



http://www.deposition.com

PROCEEDI NGS - 10/ 24/ 2018 i 6
Inside 7:22 8:20 9:18,22,23,24 3:4 15:17 27:22
11:14,15 10:23,24 11:4,5,6 12:3, lady local
. 13 13:7,9 14:9,23 15:1, i ] )
mlsgplesct 91112 16:1.9 18:14.20 5:16 15:8,11,14,19 16:10
’ 19:10 20:5,7 21:9,12, landscaping long
inspection 17,18 22:12,17 24:8 18:24 32:13 10:7 29:13 38:23 39:4
19:19,24 26:8,22 29:14 32:1,7 language look
. . 33:4 35:14 37:4 38:3,5,
inspections 19 12:20 14:24 15:24 6:23 9:16,23 31:24 32:2
20:11 17:22 18:10 24:17 29:3, lookin
. t item 10,18 08911 9
Inspector 14:9 32:15 33:10 '
20:1 27:21 30:17 31:6, large lot
its : :
18,20 398 7:610:22 11:24 12:2,6 33:9
inspectors ’ Lark louder
20:11 ] 3:14 36:3 5:22.24 30:23
inspects late
31:20 18:20
July M
instance 17:2 law
intend 20:22 lease 35:14
12:22 o 12:4,5,8,10 28:16,19,22
jurisdiction 33:912 14 lngkeup
intent 20:2 e 47
17:22 18:9 22:24 23:3 o leave
justification 22:15 mar?date.
intention 15:8 : 15:12 34:21
4:11 led mandates
interested K 258 34:24
interfered keep 3:14 304 36
34:6 6:514:13 let's Massachusetts
interpretation keeping 5:18 14:13 2729 11:7
introduce kind 3L:2 34:8
3:12 11:13 15:8 20:4 27:5 Levin matchup
. : 7:18 8:2,9,22 13:5 23:4 .
kinds s ' 17:17
'”2‘23‘_’1""3‘1 071691 7.13,23 24:4 25:19,22
: ' 26:9 27:2,15,20 28:3 math
isn't know 30:21,24 31:12,24 6:23
4:2 26:20 6:18:1111:7,11,12 32:19 38:11,12,22 matter
13:18 14:14,21 15:10
; ' : i 22:19 25:12 36:8
Issuance ~ 16 16:9,12 17:14 18:19 | 'IN€
issue 22:16 23:10 24:12 lines 28:6
s 5603545816, | mean
issues 17' ' ' — listed 16:18 17:13 21:5,9
26:13 28:7 32:15 239,19 24:4,6 27:9
. 31:14
It'll L little
37:6 5:22,24 11:19 27:19 means
) ] ) 20:7
it's ladies lives
Epi q Court Reporting Solutions - Boston

1-617-542-0039

www. deposi ti on. com



http://www.deposition.com

PROCEEDI NGS - 10/ 24/ 2018 i 7
mechanisms motor number opinions
27:22 8:15 5:21 6:3,22 7:12 8:16 35:12
median moving 9:12,13,16,23 10:1 opposed
. _ . . 12:16 14:14,18,19 s )
10:20,22 12:15 20:22 21:22 1612 1893 20:23 10:10 18:15
meeting 25:16 26:10 28:14 order
3:5,10 33:21,22 39:12 N 29:20,23 30:3 32:11 35
33:23 34:18 .
MEMBER original
3:21 14:9 name numbers 6:9,16 8:24 9:17 10:9
36 10:13 .
members originally
3:134:13 necessary 7:1,58:17 12:24
12:23 13:23 14:4 21:13, 0
members' 22 22:13 31:18 36:24 over-runoff
33:22 37:4 . . 21:4
objection
met need 17:20,21 18:11 33:22 overturn
15:15 12:1 20:18 24:6 31:15 37:7 357
metropolitan 34:1 objections
11:1,3 needs 34:23 P
microphone 15:7 24:12 28:9 obtained
3:20 i 13:24 24:22 page
_ ngg;borhood 14:9,20 16:24
mind ' obviously Palermo
6:526:11 i 16:
_ ngég.]lhdfbors 6:5.9 3:14 5:19,24 6:3,12,18
minutes : occasions 7:15,19,24 8:3,10,21
37 net 6:21 9:3,21 10:4,11,14 12:17
miserable 9:9,10 occupancy 1%;;65;2&23§%ié
27:22 new 19:21 22:7 26:5,12 28:9 3226 36:4 37:18
missed gflg,zg 7:67,10,131.,216 officially )
12:24 13:8,14 14:3 12,13,16,1713:2,15 39:9,11 paragrap
o Newton ' 4:12 5:8,9 6:7,15,16
missing 1118 Oh 10:17 11:23 13:17 14:4
8:7 : 4:17:18 13:7 14:12 19 19:11 21:24 22:18
misspoke nIC? ' 16:4 23:24 30:6 37:23 parcel
6:19 17:14 33:7 okay 1316
26:14 6:2 : : ' 6:8 9:112:4 13:13 18:8
Norfolk 20:18 21:21 22:10 21:10 22:2 24:16 37:16
modification °r_1°1 27:13 29:16 33:19 T ess e e
24:24 2511 33: once particular
modifications ”%Tflm 231218 38:13
38:5 T pause
e North ones 38:23
modified 0_ 17:4 :
28:9 37:21,22,23 38:7 11:8 online pavement
money ngéézss 4:215:1.4 22:8,9
26:14 : pedestrian
P tice open 8:14
monitoring notl _ 18:12 :
21:2 291 28:21 33:11,13 opinion peer
mosquito ngé\_/;lthstandlng 34:20 22 35:7 21:19 34:17 35:1 36:12
20:24 ) people
Epi g Court Reporting Sol utions - Boston

1-617-542-0039

www. deposi ti on. com



http://www.deposition.com

PROCEEDI NGS - 10/ 24/ 2018 i 8
5:221:1 please previously purposes
5:23 8:12 34:10 12:6
percent
10:18,20 14:16,17 point prior pursue
15:12,13 26:12 9:22,24 11:17 16:19 22:6 24:18 26:20,22 24:20 25:4
18:23 19:11 20:3 21:14 337
perform 348 pursued
26:24 ' probably 36:11
. pointed 11:11 19:22 .
permit 30:9 pursuing
12:13 15:22 17:16 ' problem 23:20 24:2,21
18:17 19:18 23:12 24:9 Polly 17:18 pursuit
25:13,14 26:21 3:15 procedural 3616
permits population 32:16 put
12:23 15:16 16:10 process 28:15 31:21 3735
personal possible 15:7 18:9 25:10 38:24
35:5,6 16:16,22 18:22 23:15, .
16 professionals Q
Personally 20:8
37:6 pg:-tﬂ project qualified
pesticides ' 3:11 6:6,9,16,17 12:19 20:8
21:4,6 potential 16:13 17:9 20:4 23:12, question
petitionerus 26:19 17,20 24:1,3,21,22 10:17,21 11:22 14:14
29:11 practical 2515,9 33:22 347,11, 20:20 21:13 24:1,8
' 251112 16,18,19 36:9,11,16 26:7,10,15 27:14 28:18
pictures " 37:9 38:15,18 )
17:14 ractice . questions
_ p20.14 16 projects 5:11 27:6 28:6
piece o 15:22 okl
7 q. i quickly
6.7 8:12 p;i(.:leldent promised 105
place ' 36:12 Qui
13:534:5 recondition uincy
p12.13 proposal 11:11
plan : 6:12,13,20,24 7:11 8:6, .
13:1 16:20 17:2 21:10, preference 249:1,14,17 12:9 quite
16 22:21 25:17,18 26:1 14:15 15:1,8,11,15,19 roposed 23:16
31:8 38:24 16:10 P , P i i i
4:107:1,58:18 10:9
planning presentations 34:2 35111 R
3:1519:4 31:7 32:13 17:12 .
33:13 37:10 38:13 proposing raised
presented 22:20 16:19 26:13
plans 19:8 25:18 36:9 37:16 . ' '
16:14,15,24 17:10,11, eservation p;gfggg,lz raising
13,15,17,24 18:7,8,15, p16_17 S 6:21
18,24 19:8 25:21 29:21 : provided rationale
30:5,7,9,11,13,14,16 presumably 29:11 1510
31:1,8,11 32:4,13,15 15:23 26:6 : '
provides reached
plate presume 30:9 353
27:24 25:6 . '
public reaching
playground presuming 5:3,12 32:22 33:17 39:8 2611
26:3,7 22:19 .. '
public's read
playgrounds pretty 34:15

4:16 5:7 32:24 33:5

25:17 924111016334 378 | b4 dinastone enlive
311
Epi q Court Reporting Solutions - Boston

1-617-542-0039

www. deposi ti on. com



http://www.deposition.com

PROCEEDI NGS - 10/ 24/ 2018 i9
34:7 remind 21:16 913:3,9,22 14:6,11
really 3:17 reviewer 15:3,6,22 16:23 17:6,20
. . . ) ) 18:2 19:3 20:3 23:14,24
8:17 9:3,11 20:12 28:7 r(elr;gval 36:12 24'5 16 25:2.8 28:21
reason ' reviewers 29:4 33:3,6 35:15,22
6:20 31:17 renovated 34:17 35:1 36:24
recall 9:6.8,20 revised screen
14:4 34:6 renovating 6:17 25:20
recommend 1732 revisions second
36:13 renovation 35:10 18:2,4 30:8 31:16 32:7
record 9:1.2 right see
3:13,20 33:10 37:6,19 rental 5:58:18,20,22 9:5,21 4:12 19:23 26:18 31:6
recorded 7:510:19 182é32167113182141313 seen
3:18 4:2 28:19,22 rir;t-fg 28:4.18.24 3317 35:22 17:5 25:3 26:1
recording ' Road Selkoe
33:13 repair 312 3:15 4:15,20,24 6:1
duci 22:4 ' 12:7 14:1,18,21 16:18
re34‘flcl'”9 renairs roads 19:20 21:5,8,11,14,19
' 22_13 22:1 22:5,14,16 23:2 25:24
reference ' roadwavs 26:20 27:8 28:8,12
12:18 14:7 17:1 replacing 99:4 y 29:8,19,23 30:1 31:14
referenced 13:7 ’ 32:4,7,11,23 33:2,4
36:17 37:11 38:2 39:9
33:10 REPORTER " aa
referred 27:18 35:20 ’ sense
: runoff 23:19 24:13
11:4 require 21-3.15
terri 14:17 - sentence
reterring e runs 17:22 18:3,5 30:8
9:19 rz‘gsz”e 2115 31:15,16,19 32:5
refers . separate
10:18 14:4 requirement S 12:6
reqard 15:2,5 '
gar _ serious
10:17 requirements sanctuary 20:13
: 15:15 21:2 '
registry _ served
28:19 33:11 rels;fl.(igznts Saralynn 36:14
regular ' 33:20 set
20:9 respectfully satisfy 17:231:1.8
- 24:6 29:12
reiterate _ seven
33:21 response saying 14:14,19,20
: 10:2 17:8 25:9 31:22
relative . Sherman
23:10 responsive says 23:6.7.15
reliant 24:18 6111123 141616112 |
207 result 17:22 185 22:6 26:2 il
rely 18:19 31:20 '
. i short
20:11 review schematic 10:8
. . . . 31:1,2 :
remember 15:18 16:20 18:7 19:5
32:14 34:17 Schwartz shout
4:15 38:19 _ ) ] ) 3:22
reviewed 6:15 7:23 8:20,23 9:5, :
10,22 10:24 11:15 12:3,
Epi q Court Reporting Solutions - Boston

1-617-542-0039

www. deposi ti on. com



http://www.deposition.com

PROCEEDI NGS - 10/ 24/ 2018 i 10
show 14:7 21:5 stronger talk
37:19 e 18:14 30:23
specificity
sign 16:21 study talked
19:17 38:3 e 26:13,14 9:5
specified
signing 24:13 subdivision talking
38:7 . 11:24 12:1 11:10
spite
signs 34:23 subject team
19:2 sprinkler 13:20 18:24 19:24 5:11
similar 19:13 35:10 36:15 38:5 technically
15:23 37:9 submission 4:110:24 11:5
staff 15:18,19
simply 38:13 o television
30:14 staircases submit 4:5,6
sincerely 31:22 15:718:731:5 32:13 tell
36:10 38:17 stand submitted 7:3
single 35:19,21 17:24 18:8 30:10.16 term
11:24 34:8 subsidizing 20:5,6 24:24 33:23
standard 159
site 14:17,23 15:24 16:9 ’ terms
24:11 32:15 33:9 substantially 9:12 10:1 15:16 34:9
» start 26:4 38:16
sitting 12:11 22:23 23:12,21
3:13 36:15 24:10 28:16 subtract testing
. . 8:4,5 21:22
size starting
33:23 34:9,11,18 23:16,17 suggest thank
small state 18:13 6:18 10:4,14 14:11,13
25:19 37:24 15:13 16:6 sum i2.6,17 38:1239:1,78,
smaller statistical 28:8 .
34:20 11:1,3 summation thegrencg“y
285 23:14 24:9
so-called statute theory
234 34:22,24 35.7 supposed 2220
somebody's STEINFELD 26:17 here's
19:1 4:1,4 5:22 14:23 15:4, sure . . . .
soon 2116:1,518:1319:5 3:23 15:18 19:15 21:3, 262i41161 21:3,2122:3
23:99 28:2329:2,5,12,16 17 22:11 25:12 27:4 '
' 30:23 32:24 36:19,21 29:17 30:1 31:7 32:1 they'll
sorry 37:3,22 331 19:21 32:2
2'71_2’319 1151413 step system they're
' 31:4 6:2 13:15 18:16 19:1,8
82221 Steve systems 20:12 25:24 37:8
: 34:10 19:14 they've
Sflu-;[ah stop 1.8.20
' 27:11 29:24 T thing
speak 8:23 18:17
2:17 19 27:18 storm take i
' 20:24 things
specific . 8:39:14 31:19 32:21 24:14 28:2 36:19
16:14 17:1 strict 33:24 .
16:6 think
specifically taken 7:21 8:20 9:12 10:12
31:2 34:20

Epi q Court Reporting Sol utions -

1-617-542-0039

Bost on
www. deposi ti on. com



http://www.deposition.com

PROCEEDI NGS - 10/ 24/ 2018 i11
12:14 14:1,6 15:11 39:5 34:18 wasn't
16:1917:7,21 21:14 transcribed unnecessar 9:3
22:16 23:2 24:6 25:3 high s y water
26:9,12 28:12 29:13 - ' 18 15
31:17 33:4,24 34:1,16 transcription use o
35:2,8 38:2 3:24 20:4 way
. 3:98:2210:2 18:5
thG','r?d ”;79_2 v 24:16 30:21,24 31:14
thirty try _ ways
6:17 14:8 various 9:23
30:16 -
. . . we'll
thirty-six trying . )
1315 18:21 24:17 vehicle >3 22:15
8:15 .
were
thought tweaks
10:5 30:3 38:1 versus 44,6 57,8,13 6:14
’ 25:17 11:10 24:2 26:17 29:14
thoughts twelve 32:4
25:15 7:16 13:13 vetted :
21:18,19 37:10 weve
three twenty _ 4:11 12:21 16:2 17:13
7:17,19,20 8:19 13:10, 10:18 view 30:11 31:2 34:15 37:6
12 31:21 35:18 9:24
Twenty-two _ wear-and-tear
three-member 7:23,24 Village 22:1
35:17 6:4,24 8:6 9:15 33:24
two weren't
threshold 6:15,16 7:13,15 16:24 | Vote 36:14
16:2 31:22 35:18 36:19 36:2,4,8 37:3,6,15 38:2,
10 west
time two-story 11:9
4:18 5:15 20:22 22:8 7:8 voted
26:6 32:22 ) 36:23 37:20 what-
typical 27:13
tlgjglll’;-g 19:9,10 W width
' typically 37:13
t%ﬁ'g% e 15:12 22:5 waiting willing
eE 37 36:8
toz(;l_; U waivers wish
: _ 4:10 33:18 36:23 37:2, 3:19 39:5
top unanimous 7,8,15,20 .
14:20 35:14,17 wishes
: want 3:17
total understand 3:235:17 7:2 101 "
7:21 8:4 9:6,12,13,16 7:20 12:22,24 13:12,14 18:10 24:19 25:13 28:1, w;;nﬂ -
10:1 18:19 23:11 30:21,24 8,13,15 29:6,16,20 : :
totaIIy understanding 30:4,6 33:3,21 35:12 Wondering
9:11 5:20 35:15 36:22 38:24 12:20 26:2 27:5
town understood Wg?éegqll 11:21 22:11 Worsester
3:9 15:7,18 18:3,5 20:9 12:21 T ' ' 11:9
26:24 29:8 33:21,22 units wanting word
trade 5:21 6:3,10,22 7:1,6,7, 33:24 29:21 32:12
20:5 14,24 8:4,7,8,16,17 9:6, | wash words
, 7,12,13,17,19 10:1,18 9:24 918
traffic 13:2,13,15 14:16 15:17
3:9 8:14,15 22:7 26:13 17:9 24:4,5 27:10 33:23
Epi q Court Reporting Solutions - Boston

1-617-542-0039

www. deposi ti on. com



http://www.deposition.com

PROCEEDI NGS

10/ 24/ 2018

i12

work
3:20 30:22 31:1 33:16
354

working
39:3

worse
395

would've
9:20

wouldn't
22:9 25:6 31:15,19

write
29:2

written
18:14

wrong
6:23 7:4 30:13

Y

yeah
11:514:6 15:3 18:16
22:16 23:24 24:5 25:22
26:18 30:20 33:15 38:2

year
26:4,8

years
38:20,22

Yep
29:4

you'll
36:17

you're
7:10,19 8:18 9:19 10:6
13:2,15,18,19 17:15
23:7,9,11,20 24:1 25:9
26:7 29:17 33:24 39:9

you've
16:19 17:24 31:21

zoning
3:6 12:5,6

Zuroff
3:4,6,22 4:3,6,18,22 5:5

6:11 7:13 9:9 10:9,12,
16 11:14,17 12:12,18
13:4,7,12 14:3,12,19
15:1 16:4,8,21 17:4,7
18:1,12,16 19:6,10,22
20:14,18 21:7,9,12,18,
21 22:10,15,18 23:6,9,
19 24:8 25:1,6,11,21
26:1,18 27:4,13,24
28:4,10,18 29:1,7,10,
13,22 30:2,6,12,18
31:10,13 32:9,17,21
33:15 34:14 35:23 36:1,
3,6,20 37:1,5,14,19,24
38:4,10,21 39:2,11

Epi q Court Reporting Sol utions -

1-617-542-0039

Bost on
www. deposi ti on. com


http://www.deposition.com

	Transcript
	Caption
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40

	Word Index
	Index: 12..Appeals
	12 (4)
	128 (2)
	13 (5)
	14 (1)
	17 (3)
	186 (1)
	196 (1)
	2016 (2)
	2018 (1)
	208 (2)
	216 (1)
	22 (2)
	226 (6)
	23 (1)
	230 (3)
	265-299 (1)
	28 (4)
	29 (1)
	3 (2)
	35J (1)
	36 (2)
	40A (1)
	40B (4)
	44 (1)
	530 (1)
	61 (1)
	63 (1)
	70 (4)
	789 (1)
	8 (1)
	90 (1)
	99 (1)
	99-year (3)
	able (1)
	absolutely (1)
	accept (1)
	accurate (1)
	acknowledging (1)
	action (1)
	actual (2)
	add (4)
	added (5)
	adding (4)
	addition (1)
	adjourned (1)
	adversely (1)
	affect (1)
	affidavits (1)
	affirmative (2)
	affordable (3)
	afternoon (1)
	agency (1)
	agenda (1)
	ago (2)
	agreed (2)
	ahead (1)
	Alison (4)
	Allaire (2)
	allows (2)
	altered (1)
	alternative (8)
	altogether (1)
	ameliorate (1)
	amicable (1)
	analysis (1)
	analyzing (1)
	answer (1)
	answered (1)
	answers (1)
	anyway (1)
	apartment (1)
	apartments (1)
	apologize (1)
	Appeals (1)

	Index: apples..Christopher
	apples (2)
	applicant (5)
	applicants (1)
	applies (2)
	apply (2)
	appreciate (6)
	approach (1)
	approval (9)
	approvals (3)
	approve (3)
	approved (2)
	approving (1)
	architectural (10)
	architecture (1)
	area (9)
	asked (2)
	asking (4)
	assume (2)
	assurances (1)
	assure (2)
	attachment (1)
	attachments (1)
	Attorney (1)
	attorneys (1)
	AUDIENCE (2)
	authorities (1)
	authorize (1)
	available (1)
	aware (2)
	back (4)
	based (5)
	basically (1)
	basis (1)
	bearing (1)
	believe (5)
	better (4)
	beyond (2)
	big (3)
	bit (3)
	board (16)
	board's (1)
	boards (1)
	Boston (8)
	Boston/cambridge/quincy (1)
	Boston/eastern (1)
	Brookline (9)
	budget (1)
	build (8)
	building (36)
	buildings (23)
	built (4)
	bulk (1)
	calculations (1)
	call (2)
	called (1)
	calling (1)
	can't (2)
	careful (1)
	case (4)
	cause (1)
	CDS (2)
	CEO (3)
	certainly (1)
	certificate (3)
	certifications (2)
	certify (1)
	certifying (1)
	cetera (1)
	chance (1)
	change (1)
	charge (1)
	Chelsea (1)
	chief (2)
	Chris (3)
	Christopher (1)

	Index: city..departments
	city (2)
	clarification (7)
	clarifying (1)
	clear (6)
	cleared (1)
	clearing (1)
	clearly (2)
	close (2)
	closed (1)
	closely (1)
	closing (2)
	code (1)
	come (3)
	comes (1)
	comfortable (1)
	coming (3)
	commence (1)
	commenced (1)
	commencement (1)
	comment (4)
	comments (8)
	commissioner (5)
	comparatively (1)
	compelled (1)
	completed (2)
	completely (2)
	compliance (2)
	comply (2)
	comprehensive (1)
	compromises (1)
	concern (1)
	concerning (1)
	concur (2)
	condition (7)
	conditions (6)
	conduct (1)
	confirmation (2)
	conform (6)
	conformed (1)
	consider (2)
	consideration (2)
	considered (3)
	consistency (1)
	consistent (4)
	construction (10)
	constructive (1)
	consultant (2)
	consummated (1)
	continue (1)
	contributed (1)
	control (2)
	controlled (1)
	correct (10)
	corrected (2)
	couldn't (1)
	counsel (2)
	County (1)
	couple (3)
	course (3)
	COURT (2)
	covered (2)
	covers (1)
	create (1)
	created (1)
	creating (3)
	criticism (1)
	cross (2)
	damage (1)
	date (2)
	dead (1)
	deal (1)
	dealing (2)
	decision (20)
	deeds (2)
	defined (3)
	definition (1)
	delay (1)
	demolishing (4)
	demolition (3)
	density (1)
	department (3)
	departments (1)

	Index: depending..findings
	depending (1)
	depicts (1)
	details (1)
	determination (1)
	determine (4)
	developer (5)
	development (4)
	developments (1)
	DHCD (2)
	didn't (5)
	difficult (1)
	direct (1)
	directing (1)
	director (4)
	disappearing (1)
	discovered (1)
	discuss (1)
	discussed (2)
	diversity (1)
	documents (1)
	doesn't (6)
	doing (5)
	don't (15)
	draft (3)
	drainage (2)
	drains (1)
	drew (1)
	driven (1)
	drop (1)
	duty (3)
	earning (1)
	eastern (1)
	eight (3)
	eighteen (2)
	encompassed (1)
	encompasses (1)
	ended (3)
	ends (1)
	enforce (1)
	enforcement (2)
	enforcements (1)
	enhanced (1)
	ensure (1)
	enter (1)
	entered (1)
	entire (3)
	equivalent (1)
	especially (1)
	essence (1)
	essentially (1)
	et (1)
	evening (4)
	evidence (2)
	exactly (1)
	excise (1)
	Excuse (1)
	exercise (1)
	exist (1)
	existing (2)
	experience (1)
	explanation (1)
	express (1)
	expressed (1)
	expressing (1)
	fact (5)
	failed (1)
	fair (2)
	fairly (2)
	far (2)
	fast (1)
	favor (3)
	feedback (1)
	feeling (1)
	feelings (2)
	fewer (1)
	fifty (1)
	figured (1)
	filed (1)
	final (10)
	find (2)
	findings (6)

	Index: fine..input
	fine (4)
	finish (1)
	finishing (1)
	fire (2)
	first (6)
	fit (1)
	fits (1)
	five (1)
	flow (1)
	footprint (1)
	form (1)
	fourteen (1)
	fulfilled (1)
	full (2)
	further (3)
	garage (2)
	gentleman (1)
	gentlemen (1)
	Gerry (2)
	getting (2)
	give (1)
	given (4)
	gives (1)
	glad (1)
	go (9)
	goes (1)
	going (17)
	good (2)
	grant (1)
	granted (1)
	granting (1)
	Greater (2)
	ground (7)
	group (1)
	guess (2)
	hadn't (4)
	hall (1)
	Hancock (5)
	hand (1)
	handwriting (1)
	hasn't (1)
	hatch (1)
	haven't (2)
	he's (2)
	heads (1)
	hear (7)
	heard (1)
	hearing (7)
	hearings (1)
	height (1)
	held (1)
	history (1)
	hope (1)
	horse (1)
	households (1)
	housing (3)
	HUD (1)
	hundred (2)
	Hussey (11)
	hypothetically (1)
	I'D (3)
	I'LL (4)
	I'M (29)
	I'VE (2)
	images (1)
	impact (1)
	implied (1)
	implies (1)
	inaudible (1)
	included (3)
	includes (2)
	including (1)
	income (2)
	increasing (1)
	infill (5)
	information (1)
	input (1)

	Index: Inside..means
	Inside (2)
	inspect (1)
	inspection (2)
	inspections (1)
	inspector (6)
	inspectors (1)
	inspects (1)
	instance (1)
	intend (1)
	intent (4)
	intention (1)
	interested (1)
	interfered (1)
	interpretation (1)
	introduce (1)
	involved (1)
	isn't (2)
	issuance (5)
	issue (1)
	issues (2)
	It'll (1)
	it's (49)
	item (3)
	its (1)
	July (1)
	jump (1)
	jurisdiction (1)
	justification (1)
	keep (2)
	keeping (1)
	kind (4)
	kinds (2)
	know (33)
	ladies (1)
	lady (1)
	landscaping (2)
	language (9)
	large (2)
	Lark (2)
	late (1)
	law (1)
	lease (10)
	leave (1)
	led (1)
	left (3)
	let's (3)
	level (1)
	Levin (25)
	line (1)
	lines (1)
	listed (1)
	little (4)
	lives (2)
	local (5)
	long (4)
	look (5)
	looking (1)
	lot (4)
	louder (3)
	majority (2)
	makeup (1)
	mandate (2)
	mandates (1)
	Mark (1)
	Massachusetts (1)
	massive (1)
	matchup (1)
	math (1)
	matter (3)
	matters (1)
	mean (10)
	means (1)

	Index: mechanisms..people
	mechanisms (1)
	median (2)
	meeting (5)
	MEMBER (2)
	members (2)
	members' (1)
	met (1)
	metropolitan (2)
	microphone (1)
	mind (2)
	minutes (1)
	miserable (1)
	missed (4)
	missing (1)
	misspoke (2)
	mitigate (1)
	modification (2)
	modifications (1)
	modified (5)
	money (1)
	monitoring (2)
	mosquito (1)
	motor (1)
	moving (3)
	name (1)
	necessary (9)
	need (5)
	needs (3)
	neighborhood (1)
	neighbors (1)
	net (2)
	new (13)
	Newton (1)
	nice (2)
	noise (1)
	Norfolk (1)
	normal (2)
	North (1)
	notes (1)
	notice (3)
	notwithstanding (1)
	number (28)
	numbers (1)
	objection (5)
	objections (1)
	obtained (2)
	obviously (2)
	occasions (1)
	occupancy (4)
	officially (2)
	Oh (8)
	okay (14)
	once (2)
	ones (1)
	online (3)
	open (1)
	opinion (3)
	opinions (1)
	opposed (2)
	order (1)
	original (6)
	originally (4)
	over-runoff (1)
	overturn (1)
	page (3)
	Palermo (29)
	paragraph (15)
	parcel (1)
	part (9)
	particular (1)
	pause (1)
	pavement (2)
	pedestrian (1)
	peer (4)
	people (2)

	Index: percent..realize
	percent (7)
	perform (1)
	permit (10)
	permits (1)
	personal (2)
	Personally (1)
	pesticides (2)
	petitioner's (1)
	pictures (1)
	piece (2)
	place (2)
	plan (12)
	planning (7)
	plans (31)
	plate (1)
	playground (2)
	playgrounds (1)
	please (1)
	point (9)
	pointed (1)
	Polly (1)
	population (2)
	possible (5)
	post (1)
	potential (1)
	practical (2)
	practice (2)
	precedent (1)
	precondition (1)
	preference (7)
	presentations (1)
	presented (4)
	preservation (1)
	presumably (2)
	presume (1)
	presuming (1)
	pretty (5)
	previously (2)
	prior (5)
	probably (2)
	problem (1)
	procedural (1)
	process (4)
	professionals (1)
	project (30)
	projects (1)
	promised (1)
	proposal (11)
	proposed (8)
	proposing (1)
	provide (2)
	provided (1)
	provides (1)
	public (5)
	public's (1)
	Puddingstone (1)
	purposes (1)
	pursue (2)
	pursued (1)
	pursuing (3)
	pursuit (1)
	put (3)
	qualified (1)
	question (13)
	questions (3)
	quickly (1)
	Quincy (1)
	quite (1)
	raised (2)
	raising (1)
	rationale (1)
	reached (1)
	reaching (1)
	read (4)
	realize (1)

	Index: really..shout
	really (5)
	reason (2)
	recall (2)
	recommend (1)
	record (5)
	recorded (4)
	recording (1)
	reducing (1)
	reference (3)
	referenced (1)
	referred (1)
	referring (1)
	refers (2)
	regard (1)
	registry (2)
	regular (1)
	reiterate (1)
	relative (1)
	reliant (1)
	rely (1)
	remember (2)
	remind (1)
	removal (1)
	renovated (3)
	renovating (2)
	renovation (2)
	rental (2)
	rented (1)
	repair (1)
	repairs (1)
	replacing (1)
	REPORTER (2)
	require (1)
	required (1)
	requirement (2)
	requirements (1)
	residents (1)
	respectfully (1)
	response (1)
	responsive (1)
	result (1)
	review (6)
	reviewed (1)
	reviewer (1)
	reviewers (2)
	revised (1)
	revisions (1)
	right (23)
	Road (1)
	roads (1)
	roadways (1)
	room (1)
	runoff (3)
	runs (1)
	sanctuary (1)
	Saralynn (1)
	satisfy (1)
	saying (3)
	says (9)
	schematic (2)
	Schwartz (38)
	screen (1)
	second (5)
	see (4)
	seen (3)
	Selkoe (40)
	sense (2)
	sentence (8)
	separate (1)
	serious (1)
	served (1)
	set (4)
	seven (3)
	Sherman (3)
	Shore (2)
	short (1)
	shout (1)

	Index: show..think
	show (1)
	sign (2)
	signing (1)
	signs (1)
	similar (2)
	simply (1)
	sincerely (2)
	single (2)
	site (3)
	sitting (2)
	size (4)
	small (2)
	smaller (1)
	so-called (1)
	somebody's (1)
	soon (1)
	sorry (5)
	sort (1)
	South (2)
	speak (3)
	specific (2)
	specifically (2)
	specificity (1)
	specified (1)
	spite (1)
	sprinkler (1)
	staff (1)
	staircases (1)
	stand (2)
	standard (4)
	start (6)
	starting (2)
	state (2)
	statistical (2)
	statute (3)
	STEINFELD (21)
	step (1)
	Steve (1)
	stop (2)
	storm (1)
	strict (1)
	stronger (1)
	study (2)
	subdivision (2)
	subject (6)
	submission (2)
	submit (4)
	submitted (4)
	subsidizing (1)
	substantially (1)
	subtract (2)
	suggest (1)
	sum (1)
	summation (1)
	supposed (1)
	sure (13)
	system (1)
	systems (1)
	take (5)
	taken (2)
	talk (1)
	talked (1)
	talking (1)
	team (1)
	technically (3)
	television (2)
	tell (1)
	term (4)
	terms (5)
	testing (1)
	thank (12)
	theoretically (2)
	theory (1)
	there's (7)
	they'll (2)
	they're (7)
	they've (1)
	thing (2)
	things (3)
	think (28)

	Index: third..words
	third (1)
	thirty (1)
	thirty-six (1)
	thought (2)
	thoughts (1)
	three (8)
	three-member (1)
	threshold (1)
	time (6)
	timing (1)
	tonight (3)
	tools (1)
	top (1)
	total (8)
	totally (1)
	town (13)
	trade (1)
	traffic (7)
	transcribed (2)
	transcription (1)
	true (1)
	try (1)
	trying (2)
	tweaks (1)
	twelve (2)
	twenty (1)
	Twenty-two (2)
	two (8)
	two-story (1)
	typical (2)
	typically (2)
	unanimous (2)
	understand (9)
	understanding (2)
	understood (1)
	units (36)
	unnecessary (1)
	use (1)
	various (1)
	vehicle (1)
	versus (1)
	vetted (3)
	view (1)
	Village (5)
	vote (8)
	voted (2)
	waiting (1)
	waivers (9)
	want (22)
	wanted (4)
	wanting (1)
	wash (1)
	wasn't (1)
	water (2)
	way (8)
	ways (1)
	we'll (2)
	we're (11)
	we've (9)
	wear-and-tear (1)
	weren't (1)
	west (1)
	what- (1)
	width (1)
	willing (1)
	wish (2)
	wishes (1)
	won't (2)
	wondering (3)
	Worcester (1)
	word (2)
	words (1)

	Index: work..Zuroff
	work (5)
	working (1)
	worse (1)
	would've (1)
	wouldn't (4)
	write (1)
	written (1)
	wrong (3)
	yeah (12)
	year (2)
	years (2)
	Yep (1)
	you'll (1)
	you're (20)
	you've (3)
	zoning (3)
	Zuroff (93)


	Transcript Formats
	Amicus
	ASCII/TXT
	Cond PDF



0001

 1                  COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

 2

 3

                          TOWN OF BROOKLINE

 4

 5                 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS HEARING

 6

     Held on October 24, 2018 at 7:01 p.m.

 7   Town of Brookline Town Hall

     333 Washington Street

 8   Brookline, Massachusetts 02445

 9

10   RE:  265-299 Gerry Road (Puddingstone at Chestnut Hill)

11

12   BOARD MEMBERS:

13   Mark Zuroff

     Lark Palermo

14   Chris Hussey

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

0002

 1

 2

 3                             I N D E X

 4

                                                       PAGE

 5

     Proceedings                                         3

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

0003

 1

 2

 3                     P R O C E E D I N G S

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:   Good evening, ladies and

 5   gentlemen.  I'm calling to order this meeting of the

 6   Zoning Board of Appeals.  My name is Mark Zuroff.  I

 7   apologize for keeping you waiting a few minutes.

 8   Brookline hasn't done anything to ameliorate the

 9   traffic on the way to the town hall.  So with that

10   being said, we are here this evening for a meeting

11   concerning the project called Puddingstone 265-299

12   Gerry Road.  Tonight, well, first, let me introduce

13   board members sitting with me for the record.  To my

14   left is Lark Palermo, to her left is Christopher

15   Hussey, and we have Polly Selkoe from the Planning

16   Department here.

17                  I remind everyone who wishes to speak

18   tonight that it is being recorded, as all of our

19   hearings are, and so that if you wish to speak for the

20   record, does that microphone work?

21                  AUDIENCE MEMBER:  No.

22                  MR. ZUROFF:  No.  Then just shout it

23   out. We want to hear you, and we want to make sure

24   that we have an accurate transcription.
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 1                  MS. STEINFELD:  Oh, so it technically

 2   isn't being recorded; it is being transcribed.

 3                  MR. ZUROFF:  Transcribed.

 4                  MS. STEINFELD:  And we're not on

 5   television.

 6                  MR. ZUROFF:  We're not on television.

 7   I'm glad to hear that.  I didn't do my makeup.

 8                  So that being said, the agenda for this

 9   evening is that we will have -- we have before us a

10   proposed decision, which includes the proposed waivers

11   that we've already discussed.  It is my intention to

12   go through the decision paragraph by paragraph to see

13   whether the board members have any comments on it, to

14   hear --

15                  MS. SELKOE:  Though you may remember at

16   our last hearing, I did read through each one of the

17   conditions.

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  Okay. But at the time, we

19   had not had a chance to --

20                  MS. SELKOE:  Well, it hadn't been

21   online.

22                  MR. ZUROFF:  And it hadn't been

23   available to --

24                  MS. SELKOE:  But it is now and also
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 1   online hadn't been all the attachments, which are

 2   there now.  So at the last hearing people from the

 3   public couldn't comment because they hadn't been

 4   online.

 5                  MR. ZUROFF:  Right.  And I have some

 6   comments on them, too.  So I'd like to go through the

 7   decision.  We're not going to read the entire

 8   decision, but we're going to go through it paragraph

 9   by paragraph.  If the board has any comments, they can

10   make them.  We will then hear from the development

11   team, if they have any comments or questions.  We will

12   also hear from the public as to the decision itself.

13   And then we'll discuss whether we're going to come to

14   a final decision tonight.  We may, depending on

15   whether the time allows.

16                  So without any further delay, lady and

17   gentleman, you want to go through the decision, you

18   may have some comments.  If you do, let's hear them.

19                  MS. PALERMO:  Well, I have actually --

20   I'd like to get a better understanding as to the

21   number of units --

22                  MS. STEINFELD:  A little bit louder,

23   please.

24                  MS. PALERMO:  A little louder, okay.
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 1                  MS. SELKOE:  You know, because the

 2   system in back makes so much noise.

 3                  MS. PALERMO:  Okay. The number of units

 4   in Hancock Village, according to this decision, is 789

 5   with 530 in Brookline.  And I keep in mind the fact

 6   that we do have this entire project that this is a

 7   piece that fits in it.  And in the third paragraph of

 8   the findings, there is an explanation of what was part

 9   of the original or what was the original project, and

10   that it would create 230 units of housing, correct?

11                  MR. ZUROFF:  That's what it says.

12                  MS. PALERMO:  And then the new proposal,

13   which is what I'd like confirmation of, the proposal

14   we're dealing with now, has included within it --

15                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Paragraph two of the

16   findings was the original project and paragraph two

17   thirty is the revised project.

18                  MS. PALERMO:  Thank you. Sorry, I

19   misspoke.  It was 226.  I'm sorry, I misspoke, 226,

20   and then this new proposal is 230.  And the reason I'm

21   raising this is I've heard on several occasions from

22   the neighborhood that the number of units is actually

23   increasing, and unless my math is wrong, if you look

24   at all of Hancock Village, this proposal is fewer
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 1   units than the one that was originally proposed, and

 2   that's why I want confirmation.

 3                  And I'll tell you how I got there, and

 4   maybe you can correct me if I'm wrong.

 5                  Originally, you proposed 226 rental

 6   units and that included 186 in the large building and

 7   12 in the new apartment units, and you were renovating

 8   28 apartments in 3 existing two-story buildings, and

 9   that's how you came up with 226.

10                  Now, you're building a new building --

11   your proposal is to build a new building that will

12   continue -- let me find the number.

13                  MR. ZUROFF:  Two hundred and eighteen

14   units.

15                  MS. PALERMO:  Two hundred and eighteen

16   and twelve in the new construction, and you are

17   demolishing three buildings.

18                  MR. LEVIN:  Oh, yes, absolutely.

19                  MS. PALERMO:  You're demolishing three

20   buildings, and those three buildings, as I understand

21   it, have a total of -- where is the total?  I think

22   it's 22.

23                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Twenty-two.

24                  MS. PALERMO:  Twenty-two units, fourteen
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 1   of which are in Brookline.

 2                  MR. LEVIN:  Correct.

 3                  MS. PALERMO:  So if I take 230 and I

 4   subtract 14, I end up with a total of 216 units in

 5   Brookline.  If I subtract the full 22, then I end up

 6   at Hancock Village with a proposal, in essence, to add

 7   208 units which is -- am I missing something?  Which

 8   is less than 226 units.

 9                  MR. LEVIN:  That's correct.

10                  MS. PALERMO:  That's what I wanted to

11   know.  So I'm looking at this as I have said

12   previously as a whole development, a piece of which is

13   the 40B and what impact does that -- this 40B have on

14   the whole development, the traffic, the pedestrian

15   traffic, the motor vehicle traffic, all of that is

16   driven by the number of units.  So in fact, the number

17   of units really is less than what you originally

18   proposed to do; is that right?  Because you're

19   demolishing three buildings.

20                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  I think it's right.

21                  MS. PALERMO:  Maybe not.

22                  MR. LEVIN:  The way you say it is right.

23                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  But there's one thing

24   just to be clear about it.  In the original proposal,
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 1   there was the renovation -- part of that proposal was

 2   the renovation of 28 buildings.

 3                  MS. PALERMO:  Which wasn't really

 4   adding.

 5                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Right, so when we talked

 6   about 226 total units, that included 28 renovated

 7   units.  So those units exist but they were being

 8   renovated.

 9                  MR. ZUROFF:  So the net --

10                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  So the net is -- so if

11   you really wanted to be totally apples to apples in

12   terms of the total number of new units, I think your

13   analysis is correct.  The total number of new units in

14   our proposal now after you take out the demolition is

15   208, Hancock Village as a whole.

16                  If you look at the total number of new

17   units in the original proposal, new units, in other

18   words that would be -- I believe it's 196 because the

19   28 that you're referring to are existing units that

20   would've been renovated.

21                  MS. PALERMO:  Right.

22                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  So the point is it's not

23   -- you can look at it in any number of ways.  It's --

24   from my own point of view, it's pretty much a wash in
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 1   terms of the total number of units, but I just want to

 2   be clear that as a response to the way you were

 3   analyzing it.

 4                  MS. PALERMO:  Thank you. No, well, I was

 5   doing this quickly this afternoon, and I thought, "Am

 6   I doing this right?" But you're right because -- but

 7   it does seem to be almost equivalent the long and

 8   short of this, then.  Okay.

 9                  MR. ZUROFF:  The original proposed as

10   opposed to this one?

11                  MS. PALERMO:  Correct.

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  Okay. I think you have the

13   numbers right.  That's all I'll say.

14                  MS. PALERMO:  Thank you.  That was

15   actually the only comment I have.

16                  MR. ZUROFF:  All right. I'm going to go

17   through.  My question on -- with regard to paragraph

18   five was it refers to twenty percent of the units in

19   the budget for rental by households earning at or

20   below fifty percent of the Boston area median income.

21                  My clarification question is this.

22   Boston area median income encompasses how large an

23   area?  It's not just --

24                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  It's technically the
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 1   Boston/Cambridge/Quincy metropolitan statistical area,

 2   which is the HUD determination for what our

 3   metropolitan statistical area is essentially in the

 4   Greater Boston area.  That's how it's referred to

 5   technically.  I'm sorry?  Yeah, it's most of eastern

 6   -- it's the bulk of what we would call Greater

 7   Boston/Eastern Massachusetts not including, you know,

 8   the South -- South Shore or North Shore, clearly,

 9   Worcester County or west, but that's the whole area

10   that we're talking about.  If you drew a line pretty

11   much, you know, from Quincy going up, probably to, you

12   know, I would say Chelsea, you know, that area and

13   kind of --

14                  MR. ZUROFF:  Inside 128, basically.

15                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Inside 128.  That's

16   pretty much consistent.

17                  MR. ZUROFF:  My point in asking that is

18   the calculations are based not on Brookline or Newton

19   but on the entire area, which does make it a little

20   bit more affordable comparatively to Brookline.  I

21   just wanted to be clear on that.

22                  And my next question has to do with in

23   paragraph eight it says that this is considered a

24   single lot.  Has there been already a subdivision?
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 1   Was there a need for approval for the subdivision that

 2   created this lot?

 3                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  No, it's by a 99-year

 4   ground lease which is part of our -- under the

 5   Brookline zoning, 99 ground lease is considered to a

 6   separate lot for zoning purposes.

 7                  MS. SELKOE:  But is there such as a

 8   ground lease there?

 9                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  There is a proposal to

10   enter into a ground lease which would be consummated

11   before we start.

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  So that would have to be a

13   precondition to the issuance of this permit, no?  It's

14   not in the conditions, but I think it should be added.

15                  Okay. Moving on, any other -- I have a

16   comment on number 12.  Do you have anything?

17                  MS. PALERMO:  No.

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  This is the first reference

19   in the decision to the alternative project, and I'm

20   wondering whether this language actually depicts what

21   was discussed and what we've all sort of understood,

22   because I understand you intend to apply for the

23   necessary permits for the alternative development.  I

24   did not understand originally, and maybe I missed it,
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 1   that that alternative plan was that you were creating

 2   36 new units, or you're renovating 36 new units?

 3                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Creating.

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:  And where was that?

 5                  MR. LEVIN:  In place of the Gerry

 6   garage.

 7                  MR. ZUROFF:  Oh, so it's replacing the

 8   garage. All right. Maybe I missed that.

 9                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  But it's the removal of

10   what we call the infill building.  So those three

11   buildings --

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  No, I understand the three

13   -- the twelve units are disappearing as part of that,

14   but I didn't understand, and maybe I missed it, that

15   you're adding thirty-six new units.  But they're on

16   another parcel, correct? Okay.

17                  In paragraph one of the conditions,

18   nowhere in here -- I know you're doing something with

19   Boston -- you're demolishing a building in Boston.

20   Should this not be subject to Boston approval for the

21   demolition of a building there?

22                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  We added -- there was a

23   condition added I believe that all the necessary

24   approvals would be obtained from the city of Boston.
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 1                  MS. SELKOE:  Right.  I think we added it

 2   towards the end.

 3                  MR. ZUROFF:  I may have missed that.  I

 4   do recall a paragraph that refers to all necessary

 5   approvals from all authorities.

 6                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah, I think we added

 7   specifically a reference to the city of Boston in

 8   that, but I'll try and find it.

 9                  AUDIENCE MEMBER:  It's on page 13, item

10   J of 35J.

11                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yes. Thank you.

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  Oh, okay.  It is covered.

13   Thank you.  Sorry.  All right.  Let's keep going.

14                  My question on number seven, I know you

15   give preference to Brookline residents for the

16   affordable units.  It says up to 70 percent.  Is that

17   standard or can we require 70 percent?

18                  MS. SELKOE:  Which number are you on?

19                  MR. ZUROFF:  Number -- paragraph seven,

20   top of page seven.

21                  MS. SELKOE:  Alison, I don't know you

22   answered that.

23                  MS. STEINFELD:  I believe it's standard

24   language that we used in the past.

0015

 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  So it's a preference, but

 2   it's not a requirement?

 3                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah.

 4                  MS. STEINFELD:  It can't be a

 5   requirement.

 6                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  If I could just -- DHCD -

 7   - the town -- the process is the town needs to submit

 8   kind of a justification for a local preference, and

 9   then DHCD or the subsidizing agency has to approve

10   that, and, you know, what the rationale is and how

11   local preference is defined.  And I think it's

12   typically up to 70 percent, so it's not a mandate for

13   70 percent.  But the concern that the state has is

14   that fair housing -- in coming up with a local

15   preference -- that fair housing requirements are met,

16   so in terms of, you know, diversity of the population

17   that lives in the affordable units.  So they will

18   review the town submission.  I'm not sure if the town

19   has made a submission for local preference in the

20   past.

21                  MS. STEINFELD:  Yes.

22                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  For permit projects but

23   presumably it will be a similar exercise.  But this is

24   the standard language that is used.
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 1                  MS. STEINFELD:  It's a difficult

 2   threshold to make, but we've been able to make it so

 3   far.

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:  Oh, all right.

 5                  MS. STEINFELD:  But, obviously, there

 6   are no assurances, but the state is very strict about

 7   it.

 8                  MR. ZUROFF:  All right. I appreciate

 9   that it's standard, and, you know, obviously, it's my

10   preference that as much of the population can be local

11   as could be.

12                  On number 13, I know that it says that

13   the buildings in the project shall conform to the

14   architectural plans.  Is that specific enough?  Or

15   should we say that the building plans will conform as

16   closely as possible to the architectural

17   preservation --

18                  MS. SELKOE:  Well, actually, I mean, I

19   think you've raised a good point.  Perhaps we should

20   have a date to review the plan.

21                  MR. ZUROFF:  In as much specificity as

22   possible.

23                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Well, the architectural

24   plans are actually defined on page two of the
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 1   decision.  So there's a specific reference to in the

 2   plan set of July 13, 2018 as the final plan set for

 3   the architectural.  So those are defined.

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:  Those are the last ones

 5   that we have seen?

 6                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Correct.

 7                  MR. ZUROFF:  But, again, I think for

 8   clarification, it should be that rather than saying

 9   the buildings in the project and the units in the

10   building shall conform to the architectural plans,

11   that the building plans themselves will be in

12   compliance with the architectural presentations that

13   we've had, those plans.  I mean, all we have is the

14   pictures, which are nice, but, you know, the building

15   plans themselves, which you're actually getting a

16   permit for, should be -- could be -- should be the

17   same or matchup with the architectural plans.  I would

18   assume that's not a problem, but it doesn't actually

19   say that.

20                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  I have no objection.  We

21   don't have an objection to doing that.  I think the

22   intent of this language is the first sentence says,

23   "When you build these buildings, they have to be in

24   accordance with these plans that you've submitted."
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 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  Which implies that --

 2                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Well, then the second

 3   sentence, "Well, how is the town going to assure

 4   itself that that's the case?" And what the second

 5   sentence in this condition says is, "The way the town

 6   is going to assure itself that that's the case is that

 7   the applicant has to submit final plans for review for

 8   consistency with the plans that we submitted as part

 9   of this process."  So that was the intent.  But if you

10   want to change the language along the lines of what

11   you said, we certainly have no objection.

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  I'm open --

13                  MS. STEINFELD:  I would suggest that's

14   it's stronger -- it's written in the buildings, the

15   actual buildings as opposed to just the plans.

16                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yeah, but they're going for

17   a permit to build, and the only thing that they get

18   approval for is the plans for those buildings.  I

19   understand the end result is the same, but, you know,

20   after they've built it, it's too late to say, well,

21   they don't comply.  I'm just trying to be as clear as

22   possible.

23                  At the same point on number 17, the

24   final landscaping plans, are they subject to
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 1   somebody's approval?  They're consistent, but who

 2   actually signs off on them?

 3                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  That would be the

 4   planning director.

 5                  MS. STEINFELD:  For review and approval?

 6                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yes.

 7                  MS. PALERMO:  Yes, to determine that

 8   they're consistent with the plans that were presented

 9   to us, which is typical.

10                  MR. ZUROFF:  And it's typical.  Again,

11   point of clarification on paragraph 23, "Applicant to

12   certify by the fire chief and building commissioner

13   that the buildings have been enhanced with sprinkler

14   systems, et cetera." Does it go beyond that?  Do they

15   actually inspect it to make sure that they do actually

16   have -- are certifying that they have?

17                  MR. HUSSEY:  They do that to sign off on

18   the building permit closed out the building department

19   does do inspection.

20                  MS. SELKOE:  For certificate of

21   occupancy, they'll come in.

22                  MR. ZUROFF:  No, I know that's probably

23   the case but I didn't see it here.  Just whether it

24   should be subject to the final inspection by the fire
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 1   department or chief inspector or whomever has

 2   jurisdiction.

 3                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Just as a point of

 4   information, for a project like this, we kind of use

 5   the term in the trade it's going to be controlled

 6   construction, which Chris may be aware of that term.

 7   So what that means is that it's reliant on

 8   certifications from qualified professionals to the

 9   town on a regular basis as to compliance, and the town

10   -- not to say that they don't have their own

11   inspectors and inspections, they do, but they rely on

12   those certifications. They're really affidavits under,

13   you know, serious --

14                  MR. ZUROFF:  If that's normal practice,

15   that's fine.  I just figured --

16                  MR. HUSSEY:  It is a normal practice in

17   my experience.

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  Okay. Then it doesn't need

19   any further clarification.

20                  I already asked that question about the

21   demolition.

22                  You can jump in at any time.  I'm moving

23   through my notes.  Number 29, I just I know it applies

24   to storm drains and control and mosquito control.  I

0021

 1   don't know, and maybe the people in charge do, whether

 2   that includes monitoring the horse sanctuary to make

 3   sure that there's no runoff -- unnecessary runoff,

 4   over-runoff of pesticides or whatever.

 5                  MS. SELKOE:  Specifically, you mean for

 6   the pesticides --

 7                  MR. ZUROFF:  Right.

 8                  MS. SELKOE:  -- not for the water.

 9                  MR. ZUROFF:  And drainage.  I mean, it's

10   all part of the plan.

11                  MS. SELKOE:  Right.

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  And, again, if it's not

13   necessary I'm just asking the question.

14                  MS. SELKOE:  Well, I think the point is

15   if it runs off, it would runoff in the water as you

16   said, and the drainage plan is going to be reviewed to

17   make sure -- and it's already been --

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  It's been vetted.

19                  MS. SELKOE:  -- vetted by the peer

20   consultant.

21                  MR. ZUROFF:  Okay. So there's no further

22   testing necessary.  Any other comments?  I'm moving

23   ahead.

24                  On paragraph 44 having to do with
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 1   monitoring the wear-and-tear on the roads.  Is there

 2   an affirmative duty on the part of the developer

 3   should there be discovered that there's damage to the

 4   roadways that they repair them?

 5                  MS. SELKOE:  There typically is.  It

 6   says, "Then again prior to issuance of a Certificate

 7   of Occupancy to ensure construction traffic does not

 8   adversely affect the pavement."  So at that time they

 9   wouldn't get the CEO unless the pavement was --

10                  MR. ZUROFF:  Okay. Again, for

11   clarification, I just wanted to make sure even though

12   it's implied, and it's held over their heads that they

13   have an affirmative duty to make repairs as necessary.

14                  MS. SELKOE:  Yes.

15                  MR. ZUROFF:  But we'll leave it alone.

16                  MS. SELKOE:  Yeah, I think, you know,

17   they won't get the CEO unless it's done.

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  On paragraph 61.  Just as a

19   matter of clarification, again, I'm presuming that

20   because the developer is in theory proposing an

21   alternative plan that whatever construction is

22   commenced will commence with the big building before

23   they start building the infill buildings because their

24   at least expressed intent is not to build the infill
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 1   buildings.

 2                  MS. SELKOE:  I think that was their

 3   intent.

 4                  MR. LEVIN:  The big -- the so-called

 5   the --

 6                  MR. ZUROFF:  The Sherman building.

 7                  MR. LEVIN:  The Sherman building. You're

 8   asking --

 9                  MR. ZUROFF:  I mean, you're going to be

10   doing -- I don't know if the timing of the relative --

11   you haven't filed yet, as I understand it.  So you're

12   going to start the project once you get this permit.

13                  MR. LEVIN:  Yes.

14                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  So it is theoretically at

15   least possible that we be -- build the Sherman

16   building before starting and quite possible before

17   starting the alternative project, in which case that's

18   what we would do and once --

19                  MR. ZUROFF:  I mean, it makes sense for

20   you, if you're pursuing the other project, not to

21   start construction on buildings that may not be built

22   soon.

23                  MR. LEVIN:  Correct.

24                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Oh, yeah, if your
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 1   question is would we build the project that you're

 2   approving while we're still pursuing the alternative

 3   project, the answer is clearly no.

 4                  MR. LEVIN:  You mean the 12 units.

 5                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah, the 12 units.  I

 6   mean, respectfully, I don't think you need to say that

 7   because we would --

 8                  MR. ZUROFF:  No, it's a question for

 9   clarification.  Theoretically, this permit gives you

10   the right to start construction everywhere.  You may

11   be clearing the site where it may not have to be

12   cleared, and, again, I don't know that it needs to be

13   specified because as you say it doesn't make sense for

14   you to do things.  On the other hand, it doesn't say

15   that.

16                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Well, in part the way

17   they ended up with this language was trying to be

18   responsive to something you said at a prior hearing

19   which is that you want to be careful that the board

20   was not directing the applicant to pursue the other

21   project, or just acknowledging that we were pursuing

22   the other project, and if we obtained the approvals

23   for it, then we would be coming back here for

24   modification of this term.
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 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  For modification.

 2                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  So that's where we ended

 3   up, which I think is fine.  If you had seen fit to

 4   say, well, we direct you to pursue that other

 5   project --

 6                  MR. ZUROFF:  I wouldn't presume to do

 7   that.

 8                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Then it could have led to

 9   you're saying, and you won't build this first project

10   until you finish the process of the other one.

11                  MR. ZUROFF:  Because as a practical

12   matter, I am sure you will do what is practical but,

13   again, this permit allows you to do whatever you want

14   under this permit.  Maybe I'm just expressing

15   thoughts, but anyway.

16                  On number 63 having to do with the

17   playgrounds.  Now, this is the alternative plan versus

18   the presented plan.

19                  MR. LEVIN:  Actually, there are small

20   images here.  I have them on the big screen.

21                  MR. ZUROFF:  The plans?

22                  MR. LEVIN:  Yeah, but they are in the

23   back.

24                  MS. SELKOE:  They're in an attachment.
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 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  No, no, I've seen the plan.

 2   I'm fine with that.  I'm just wondering it says,

 3   "Construction of such playground shall be

 4   substantially completed within one year of the date of

 5   the issuance to the final certificate of occupancy."

 6   By that time presumably you will determine which

 7   playground you're going to build, but my question is

 8   what if it's not built within a year?

 9                  MR. LEVIN:  Well, I think that that

10   question applies to a number of these conditions.  For

11   instance, what comes to mind is within reaching 90

12   percent occupancy I think it is, we have to conduct a

13   traffic study, and then if issues are raised in that

14   study that there's some money to mitigate, you know,

15   you can ask the same question, what if we didn't do

16   that after you have your CEO.  There's a few of those

17   in there.  We're supposed to do post --

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yeah, I see them as

19   potential dead ends.

20                  MS. SELKOE:  This isn't prior to the

21   issuance of a building permit.

22                  MS. PALERMO:  No, it's prior to the

23   issuance -- well, I would assume if they failed to

24   perform any of these conditions that the town would
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 1   have a cause of action against the developer.

 2                  MR. LEVIN:  Would that not be true with

 3   any?

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:  No, I'm sure it is.  I'm

 5   just wondering what kind of enforcements, and maybe

 6   I'm just, again, asking questions I don't know the

 7   answers to.  I'm just interested to know.

 8                  MS. SELKOE:  The enforcement is by the

 9   building commissioner, and, I mean, let's say that

10   they haven't rented all the units, then the building

11   commissioner would make them stop until this was

12   completely fulfilled.

13                  MR. ZUROFF:  Okay. Again, it was a what-

14   if question.

15                  MR. LEVIN:  So we don't like to cross

16   the building commissioner because he's got all kinds

17   of tools that he can apply that enforce --

18                  THE COURT REPORTER:  Can you just speak

19   up a little bit?

20                  MR. LEVIN:  I said we don't like to

21   cross the building inspector because he has all kinds

22   of mechanisms to make our lives miserable if we do

23   something like that.

24                  MR. ZUROFF:  And I also know his plate
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 1   is fairly full, so he doesn't want to be involved in

 2   the enforcement of these things.

 3                  MR. LEVIN:  Nor do we.

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:  All right. That's the

 5   summation of my findings. I appreciate your clarifying

 6   some of my questions, but beyond those matters, I

 7   really don't have any issues.

 8                  MS. SELKOE:  Do you want me to sum up

 9   what needs to be altered or modified?

10                  MR. ZUROFF:  If you would like to, I

11   would appreciate it.

12                  MS. SELKOE:  I think under the

13   conditions you want us to add the findings under

14   number eight.  Under number eight the findings, you

15   want us to put that in as a condition and that is a

16   99-year lease has to be completed before they start

17   building.

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  Right.  As a question, a

19   99-year lease should it be recorded in the registry of

20   deeds?

21                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Well, a notice of the

22   lease would be recorded --

23                  MS. STEINFELD:  Could the attorneys in

24   the room draft that condition right now?
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 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  Can we drop that condition?

 2                  MS. STEINFELD:  Draft -- write it.

 3   Provide the actual language.

 4                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yep.

 5                  MS. STEINFELD:  We could go back to it

 6   if you want.

 7                  MR. ZUROFF:  We know what it is.

 8                  MS. SELKOE:  We could have town

 9   counsel --

10                  MR. ZUROFF:  So language could be

11   provided by the petitioner's counsel.

12                  MS. STEINFELD:  Does that satisfy you?

13                  MR. ZUROFF:  I think so.  As long as we

14   know we're dealing with the same issue, and it's

15   fairly clear.

16                  MS. STEINFELD:  Okay. I just want to

17   make sure you're comfortable that they draft the

18   language.

19                  MS. SELKOE:  And then condition of

20   number 13 which was under architecture, do you want us

21   to add the word plans under buildings, building plans?

22                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yes.

23                  MS. SELKOE:  And under number 17.

24                  MS. PALERMO:  Can I stop for --
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 1                  MS. SELKOE:  Sure.

 2                  MR. ZUROFF:  Of course.

 3                  MS. PALERMO:  Now, number 13, I thought

 4   we left it as is because we want the buildings to

 5   conform to the plans.

 6                  MR. ZUROFF:  Oh, we want the buildings

 7   and the plans.

 8                  MS. PALERMO:  But the second sentence,

 9   as Alison pointed out, provides that the plans have to

10   be submitted to her, and then she has to determine

11   that they conform to the plans, so we've covered --

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  Chris, correct me if I'm

13   wrong, the building plans are more comprehensive than

14   simply the architectural plans.

15                  MR. HUSSEY:  No, well, the architectural

16   plans are submitted to the various boards like the

17   building inspector to get approval.

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  So they have all the

19   details in them?

20                  MR. HUSSEY:  Yeah.

21                  MR. LEVIN:  So the way I understand this

22   to work --

23                  MS. STEINFELD:  Can you talk louder?

24                  MR. LEVIN:  The way I understand this to
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 1   work is that you have a set of schematic plans that

 2   we've taken it to a schematic level, and that we've

 3   all agreed that this is the building that is going to

 4   be built.  The next step would be to do construction

 5   documents, CDs and we submit those CDs not only for

 6   the building inspector to see if they comply with code

 7   but to the planning director to make sure that the

 8   plans conform to the plan set that goes along with

 9   this.

10                  MR. ZUROFF:  So altogether, are those

11   considered the architectural plans?

12                  MR. LEVIN:  Yes.

13                  MR. ZUROFF:  They are.

14                  MS. SELKOE:  I mean, in a way you

15   wouldn't need that first sentence at all because the

16   second sentence covers --

17                  MS. PALERMO:  I think if for some reason

18   this is necessary for the building inspector, I

19   wouldn't take the sentence out because the building

20   inspector inspects the building and says, actually,

21   this didn't come out exactly.  You've put in three

22   staircases instead of two.  I'm just saying

23   hypothetically.

24                  MR. LEVIN:  They would look at it before
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 1   to make sure it's conformed.

 2                  MS. PALERMO:  And they'll look at it

 3   during construction.

 4                  MS. SELKOE:  So we're not adding plans

 5   to the first sentence.

 6                  MS. PALERMO:  I would not.

 7                  MS. SELKOE:  Because it's in the second,

 8   is that agreed?

 9                  MR. ZUROFF:  I'm fine with that if

10   that's encompassed within the definition.

11                  MS. SELKOE:  And on number 17, we are

12   adding the word and approval. So the applicant shall

13   submit final landscaping plans to the planning

14   director who will review an approval to determine that

15   they are consistent with site plans listed in item 3

16   under procedural history.

17                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yes.  That's it?  So that's

18   the end of the board's comments.

19                  MR. LEVIN:  I'm just finishing the

20   condition that Alison ...

21                  MR. ZUROFF:  Well, you can take your

22   time.  We can go to the public.

23                  MS. SELKOE:  He's fast.

24                  MS. STEINFELD:  Could you read it to the
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 1   board? Just make sure that they --

 2                  MS. SELKOE:  Of course.

 3                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  If you want me to --

 4                  MS. SELKOE:  It's pretty clear.  I think

 5   I could have read his handwriting.

 6                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Well, thank you.  That's

 7   very nice of you to say.  "Prior to the commencement

 8   of construction, the applicants shall have entered

 9   into a ground lease of the site creating the lot

10   referenced in item 8 of the findings, and shall record

11   with Norfolk Registry of Deeds a notice of said ground

12   lease.  The applicant shall provide evidence to the

13   planning director of the recording of the notice of

14   ground lease."

15                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yeah, I guess that will

16   work.

17                  All right. Thank you. Public comments

18   about the decision or the waivers?  There are none.

19   Okay.

20                  MS. ALLAIRE:  I'm Saralynn Allaire from

21   the town meeting, and I just want to reiterate the

22   town meeting members' objection to the project based

23   on size, that's in term of the number of units.  And I

24   think you're wanting to take a whole Hancock Village
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 1   approach, so you need to think about the other

 2   developments that are going on and proposed in

 3   addition to this one.

 4                  Also, the infill buildings, you know,

 5   are just completely out of place.  Your consultant, as

 6   I recall, said that they interfered with the flow of

 7   the whole project.  I realize they may go at some

 8   point.  And then the single building is just massive

 9   in size, both in terms of footprint and height.  So I

10   just would -- and Steve has previously said that there

11   is precedent for reducing the size of a project by a

12   group such as yours, and so I just ask that you

13   consider that.

14                  MR. ZUROFF:  Well, I appreciate your

15   comment.  We've always been aware of the public's

16   feeling about the project, but I do think that we have

17   had our peer reviewers review everything.  The density

18   of the project, the number of units and the size of

19   the project is something that we did consider, we did

20   get it to be smaller, but in my opinion, we have taken

21   all of that into consideration given the mandate that

22   was given to us by the statute.  And in my opinion, in

23   spite of the fact that I may also have objections to

24   excise, the statute mandates what we have gone

0035

 1   through.  Our peer reviewers have given us the

 2   feedback that we were required to get, and I think

 3   that we have reached an amicable decision based on

 4   what we have been given to work with.

 5                  What my personal feelings are, what your

 6   personal feelings are have some bearing, but not

 7   enough to overturn the statute.  That's my opinion.

 8                  Based on what we have, I think that

 9   unless we have something else to deal with this

10   evening, and subject to the revisions that have been

11   proposed for the final decision, the board can express

12   their opinions on whether they want to accept this as

13   the decision of the board or not, and it has to be

14   unanimous or majority.  It's a majority.

15                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  My understanding is that

16   in a 40B decision -- in a 40A decision when you have a

17   three-member board it has to be unanimous.  In a 40B

18   decision, it can be two out of the three.

19                  MR. HUSSEY:  I stand corrected.

20                  THE COURT REPORTER:  I can't hear you.

21                  MR. HUSSEY:  I stand corrected.  Mr.

22   Schwartz is right.

23                  MR. ZUROFF:  So, Chris?

24                  MR. HUSSEY:  Yes.
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 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yes or no?

 2                  MR. HUSSEY:  I would vote in favor.

 3                  MR. ZUROFF:  Lark?

 4                  MS. PALERMO:  Yes, I also vote in favor

 5   of the grant.

 6                  MR. ZUROFF:  And based on your

 7   interpretation of the law, notwithstanding the fact

 8   that my vote doesn't matter, I also am willing to

 9   approve the project as presented, and I do appreciate

10   that the developer made some compromises.  I sincerely

11   hope that the alternative project is pursued as has

12   been promised because, again, the peer reviewer did

13   recommend that the infill buildings would be -- it

14   would be better served if they weren't there.  That

15   will be subject to the sitting board, whoever it is,

16   in your pursuit of that project.

17                  MS. SELKOE:  So you'll have to close the

18   hearing --

19                  MS. STEINFELD:  Excuse me, two things?

20                  MR. ZUROFF:  Alison, of course.

21                  MS. STEINFELD:  Before you close the

22   hearing.  One is I just want to in the past the board

23   I believe has always voted the waivers.  I don't know

24   if that's necessary.  Attorney Schwartz?
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 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  We have gone through the

 2   waivers already.

 3                  MS. STEINFELD:  But there was no vote.

 4   I don't know if it's necessary.

 5                  MR. ZUROFF:  I'll put it to the board.

 6   It'll be on the record.  Personally, I vote that we've

 7   gone through the waivers.  I have no objection to the

 8   waivers. They're pretty much the same waivers that

 9   were granted on a similar project, and they have been

10   vetted by the planning and building departments.

11                  MS. SELKOE:  But the building

12   commissioner who had actually asked to add one which

13   they did about the width of the (inaudible.)

14                  MR. ZUROFF:  So with that being said, I

15   vote in favor of granting the waivers that are

16   presented as part of the decision.

17                  MR. HUSSEY:  I concur.

18                  MS. PALERMO:  I concur.

19                  MR. ZUROFF:  So the record will show

20   that it is voted on, the waivers are approved.  The

21   decision to be modified is approved.

22                  MS. STEINFELD:  As modified -- has been

23   modified. Oh, I'm sorry, yes.

24                  MR. ZUROFF:  There are a couple of small
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 1   tweaks.

 2                  MS. SELKOE:  Yeah, I would think a vote

 3   to authorize you to sign it when it's in final form.

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:  Well, that's why I said

 5   it's subject to those modifications.  I guess I should

 6   ask the board for approval.  Will the board approve my

 7   signing the decision as modified at the end?

 8                  MR. HUSSEY:  I will.

 9                  MS. PALERMO:  I will.

10                  MR. ZUROFF:  So that is a final vote of

11   the board.  Mr. Levin.

12                  MR. LEVIN:  I would just like to thank,

13   in particular, you and your board, the planning staff,

14   especially as well, the neighbors and everyone who

15   contributed to the consideration of our project, both

16   in terms of constructive, you know, criticism and

17   other that I, you know, I sincerely believe we ended

18   up with a better project than what we came in with as

19   far ago as we did.  I don't remember. It's been a

20   couple of years now.

21                  MR. ZUROFF:  2016.

22                  MR. LEVIN:  2016.  So a couple of years

23   ago with a pause, but nonetheless, it was a long

24   enough process to hatch a better plan, and I want to
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 1   thank everyone for that.

 2                  MR. ZUROFF:  And I appreciate the

 3   developer working with us.  That being said, the fact

 4   that it took me so long to get here is evidence that

 5   the traffic is getting worse, and I wish there were

 6   less buildings going on in Brookline, but we are

 7   compelled to do our duty. So I thank you all for

 8   coming.  I thank the public for its input.

 9                  MS. SELKOE:  You're officially closing

10   the hearing.

11                  MR. ZUROFF:  I am officially closing the

12   hearing, and this meeting is now adjourned.  Thank you

13   very much.

14

15                  (Whereupon the hearing was concluded at

16        7:50 p.m.)
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 1   

 2   

 3                     P R O C E E D I N G S 

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:   Good evening, ladies and 

 5   gentlemen.  I'm calling to order this meeting of the 

 6   Zoning Board of Appeals.  My name is Mark Zuroff.  I 

 7   apologize for keeping you waiting a few minutes.  

 8   Brookline hasn't done anything to ameliorate the 

 9   traffic on the way to the town hall.  So with that 

10   being said, we are here this evening for a meeting 

11   concerning the project called Puddingstone 265-299 

12   Gerry Road.  Tonight, well, first, let me introduce 

13   board members sitting with me for the record.  To my 

14   left is Lark Palermo, to her left is Christopher 

15   Hussey, and we have Polly Selkoe from the Planning 

16   Department here. 

17                  I remind everyone who wishes to speak 

18   tonight that it is being recorded, as all of our 

19   hearings are, and so that if you wish to speak for the 

20   record, does that microphone work?   

21                  AUDIENCE MEMBER:  No.  

22                  MR. ZUROFF:  No.  Then just shout it 

23   out. We want to hear you, and we want to make sure 

24   that we have an accurate transcription.   
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 1                  MS. STEINFELD:  Oh, so it technically 

 2   isn't being recorded; it is being transcribed.  

 3                  MR. ZUROFF:  Transcribed.   

 4                  MS. STEINFELD:  And we're not on 

 5   television.   

 6                  MR. ZUROFF:  We're not on television.  

 7   I'm glad to hear that.  I didn't do my makeup. 

 8                  So that being said, the agenda for this 

 9   evening is that we will have -- we have before us a 

10   proposed decision, which includes the proposed waivers 

11   that we've already discussed.  It is my intention to 

12   go through the decision paragraph by paragraph to see 

13   whether the board members have any comments on it, to 

14   hear --  

15                  MS. SELKOE:  Though you may remember at 

16   our last hearing, I did read through each one of the 

17   conditions. 

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  Okay. But at the time, we 

19   had not had a chance to --  

20                  MS. SELKOE:  Well, it hadn't been 

21   online. 

22                  MR. ZUROFF:  And it hadn't been 

23   available to --  

24                  MS. SELKOE:  But it is now and also 
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 1   online hadn't been all the attachments, which are 

 2   there now.  So at the last hearing people from the 

 3   public couldn't comment because they hadn't been 

 4   online. 

 5                  MR. ZUROFF:  Right.  And I have some 

 6   comments on them, too.  So I'd like to go through the 

 7   decision.  We're not going to read the entire 

 8   decision, but we're going to go through it paragraph 

 9   by paragraph.  If the board has any comments, they can 

10   make them.  We will then hear from the development 

11   team, if they have any comments or questions.  We will 

12   also hear from the public as to the decision itself.  

13   And then we'll discuss whether we're going to come to 

14   a final decision tonight.  We may, depending on 

15   whether the time allows.   

16                  So without any further delay, lady and 

17   gentleman, you want to go through the decision, you 

18   may have some comments.  If you do, let's hear them.   

19                  MS. PALERMO:  Well, I have actually -- 

20   I'd like to get a better understanding as to the 

21   number of units --  

22                  MS. STEINFELD:  A little bit louder, 

23   please.  

24                  MS. PALERMO:  A little louder, okay. 
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 1                  MS. SELKOE:  You know, because the 

 2   system in back makes so much noise.  

 3                  MS. PALERMO:  Okay. The number of units 

 4   in Hancock Village, according to this decision, is 789 

 5   with 530 in Brookline.  And I keep in mind the fact 

 6   that we do have this entire project that this is a 

 7   piece that fits in it.  And in the third paragraph of 

 8   the findings, there is an explanation of what was part 

 9   of the original or what was the original project, and 

10   that it would create 230 units of housing, correct?   

11                  MR. ZUROFF:  That's what it says. 

12                  MS. PALERMO:  And then the new proposal, 

13   which is what I'd like confirmation of, the proposal 

14   we're dealing with now, has included within it --  

15                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Paragraph two of the 

16   findings was the original project and paragraph two 

17   thirty is the revised project. 

18                  MS. PALERMO:  Thank you. Sorry, I 

19   misspoke.  It was 226.  I'm sorry, I misspoke, 226, 

20   and then this new proposal is 230.  And the reason I'm 

21   raising this is I've heard on several occasions from 

22   the neighborhood that the number of units is actually 

23   increasing, and unless my math is wrong, if you look 

24   at all of Hancock Village, this proposal is fewer 
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 1   units than the one that was originally proposed, and 

 2   that's why I want confirmation.   

 3                  And I'll tell you how I got there, and 

 4   maybe you can correct me if I'm wrong.   

 5                  Originally, you proposed 226 rental 

 6   units and that included 186 in the large building and 

 7   12 in the new apartment units, and you were renovating 

 8   28 apartments in 3 existing two-story buildings, and 

 9   that's how you came up with 226.  

10                  Now, you're building a new building -- 

11   your proposal is to build a new building that will 

12   continue -- let me find the number. 

13                  MR. ZUROFF:  Two hundred and eighteen 

14   units. 

15                  MS. PALERMO:  Two hundred and eighteen 

16   and twelve in the new construction, and you are 

17   demolishing three buildings. 

18                  MR. LEVIN:  Oh, yes, absolutely. 

19                  MS. PALERMO:  You're demolishing three 

20   buildings, and those three buildings, as I understand 

21   it, have a total of -- where is the total?  I think 

22   it's 22.   

23                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Twenty-two.  

24                  MS. PALERMO:  Twenty-two units, fourteen 
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 1   of which are in Brookline. 

 2                  MR. LEVIN:  Correct. 

 3                  MS. PALERMO:  So if I take 230 and I 

 4   subtract 14, I end up with a total of 216 units in 

 5   Brookline.  If I subtract the full 22, then I end up 

 6   at Hancock Village with a proposal, in essence, to add 

 7   208 units which is -- am I missing something?  Which 

 8   is less than 226 units. 

 9                  MR. LEVIN:  That's correct. 

10                  MS. PALERMO:  That's what I wanted to 

11   know.  So I'm looking at this as I have said 

12   previously as a whole development, a piece of which is 

13   the 40B and what impact does that -- this 40B have on 

14   the whole development, the traffic, the pedestrian 

15   traffic, the motor vehicle traffic, all of that is 

16   driven by the number of units.  So in fact, the number 

17   of units really is less than what you originally 

18   proposed to do; is that right?  Because you're 

19   demolishing three buildings. 

20                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  I think it's right. 

21                  MS. PALERMO:  Maybe not. 

22                  MR. LEVIN:  The way you say it is right.  

23                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  But there's one thing 

24   just to be clear about it.  In the original proposal, 
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 1   there was the renovation -- part of that proposal was 

 2   the renovation of 28 buildings.  

 3                  MS. PALERMO:  Which wasn't really 

 4   adding. 

 5                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Right, so when we talked 

 6   about 226 total units, that included 28 renovated 

 7   units.  So those units exist but they were being 

 8   renovated. 

 9                  MR. ZUROFF:  So the net --  

10                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  So the net is -- so if 

11   you really wanted to be totally apples to apples in 

12   terms of the total number of new units, I think your 

13   analysis is correct.  The total number of new units in 

14   our proposal now after you take out the demolition is 

15   208, Hancock Village as a whole.   

16                  If you look at the total number of new 

17   units in the original proposal, new units, in other 

18   words that would be -- I believe it's 196 because the 

19   28 that you're referring to are existing units that 

20   would've been renovated.   

21                  MS. PALERMO:  Right. 

22                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  So the point is it's not 

23   -- you can look at it in any number of ways.  It's -- 

24   from my own point of view, it's pretty much a wash in 
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 1   terms of the total number of units, but I just want to 

 2   be clear that as a response to the way you were 

 3   analyzing it.   

 4                  MS. PALERMO:  Thank you. No, well, I was 

 5   doing this quickly this afternoon, and I thought, "Am 

 6   I doing this right?" But you're right because -- but 

 7   it does seem to be almost equivalent the long and 

 8   short of this, then.  Okay.    

 9                  MR. ZUROFF:  The original proposed as 

10   opposed to this one?  

11                  MS. PALERMO:  Correct.  

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  Okay. I think you have the 

13   numbers right.  That's all I'll say.  

14                  MS. PALERMO:  Thank you.  That was 

15   actually the only comment I have. 

16                  MR. ZUROFF:  All right. I'm going to go 

17   through.  My question on -- with regard to paragraph 

18   five was it refers to twenty percent of the units in 

19   the budget for rental by households earning at or 

20   below fifty percent of the Boston area median income.   

21                  My clarification question is this.  

22   Boston area median income encompasses how large an 

23   area?  It's not just -- 

24                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  It's technically the 
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 1   Boston/Cambridge/Quincy metropolitan statistical area, 

 2   which is the HUD determination for what our 

 3   metropolitan statistical area is essentially in the 

 4   Greater Boston area.  That's how it's referred to 

 5   technically.  I'm sorry?  Yeah, it's most of eastern  

 6   -- it's the bulk of what we would call Greater 

 7   Boston/Eastern Massachusetts not including, you know, 

 8   the South -- South Shore or North Shore, clearly, 

 9   Worcester County or west, but that's the whole area 

10   that we're talking about.  If you drew a line pretty 

11   much, you know, from Quincy going up, probably to, you 

12   know, I would say Chelsea, you know, that area and 

13   kind of -- 

14                  MR. ZUROFF:  Inside 128, basically.  

15                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Inside 128.  That's 

16   pretty much consistent.  

17                  MR. ZUROFF:  My point in asking that is 

18   the calculations are based not on Brookline or Newton 

19   but on the entire area, which does make it a little 

20   bit more affordable comparatively to Brookline.  I 

21   just wanted to be clear on that.   

22                  And my next question has to do with in 

23   paragraph eight it says that this is considered a 

24   single lot.  Has there been already a subdivision?  
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 1   Was there a need for approval for the subdivision that 

 2   created this lot?  

 3                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  No, it's by a 99-year 

 4   ground lease which is part of our -- under the 

 5   Brookline zoning, 99 ground lease is considered to a 

 6   separate lot for zoning purposes.  

 7                  MS. SELKOE:  But is there such as a 

 8   ground lease there? 

 9                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  There is a proposal to 

10   enter into a ground lease which would be consummated 

11   before we start. 

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  So that would have to be a 

13   precondition to the issuance of this permit, no?  It's 

14   not in the conditions, but I think it should be added.   

15                  Okay. Moving on, any other -- I have a 

16   comment on number 12.  Do you have anything?  

17                  MS. PALERMO:  No.  

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  This is the first reference 

19   in the decision to the alternative project, and I'm 

20   wondering whether this language actually depicts what 

21   was discussed and what we've all sort of understood, 

22   because I understand you intend to apply for the 

23   necessary permits for the alternative development.  I 

24   did not understand originally, and maybe I missed it, 
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 1   that that alternative plan was that you were creating 

 2   36 new units, or you're renovating 36 new units? 

 3                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Creating. 

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:  And where was that? 

 5                  MR. LEVIN:  In place of the Gerry 

 6   garage. 

 7                  MR. ZUROFF:  Oh, so it's replacing the 

 8   garage. All right. Maybe I missed that.   

 9                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  But it's the removal of 

10   what we call the infill building.  So those three 

11   buildings --  

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  No, I understand the three 

13   -- the twelve units are disappearing as part of that, 

14   but I didn't understand, and maybe I missed it, that 

15   you're adding thirty-six new units.  But they're on 

16   another parcel, correct? Okay.   

17                  In paragraph one of the conditions, 

18   nowhere in here -- I know you're doing something with 

19   Boston -- you're demolishing a building in Boston.  

20   Should this not be subject to Boston approval for the 

21   demolition of a building there? 

22                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  We added -- there was a 

23   condition added I believe that all the necessary 

24   approvals would be obtained from the city of Boston. 
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 1                  MS. SELKOE:  Right.  I think we added it 

 2   towards the end.   

 3                  MR. ZUROFF:  I may have missed that.  I 

 4   do recall a paragraph that refers to all necessary 

 5   approvals from all authorities. 

 6                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah, I think we added 

 7   specifically a reference to the city of Boston in 

 8   that, but I'll try and find it.   

 9                  AUDIENCE MEMBER:  It's on page 13, item 

10   J of 35J. 

11                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yes. Thank you. 

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  Oh, okay.  It is covered.  

13   Thank you.  Sorry.  All right.  Let's keep going.   

14                  My question on number seven, I know you 

15   give preference to Brookline residents for the 

16   affordable units.  It says up to 70 percent.  Is that 

17   standard or can we require 70 percent? 

18                  MS. SELKOE:  Which number are you on?  

19                  MR. ZUROFF:  Number -- paragraph seven, 

20   top of page seven.   

21                  MS. SELKOE:  Alison, I don't know you 

22   answered that.     

23                  MS. STEINFELD:  I believe it's standard 

24   language that we used in the past. 
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 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  So it's a preference, but 

 2   it's not a requirement?  

 3                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah.  

 4                  MS. STEINFELD:  It can't be a 

 5   requirement. 

 6                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  If I could just -- DHCD -

 7   - the town -- the process is the town needs to submit 

 8   kind of a justification for a local preference, and 

 9   then DHCD or the subsidizing agency has to approve 

10   that, and, you know, what the rationale is and how 

11   local preference is defined.  And I think it's 

12   typically up to 70 percent, so it's not a mandate for 

13   70 percent.  But the concern that the state has is 

14   that fair housing -- in coming up with a local 

15   preference -- that fair housing requirements are met, 

16   so in terms of, you know, diversity of the population 

17   that lives in the affordable units.  So they will 

18   review the town submission.  I'm not sure if the town 

19   has made a submission for local preference in the 

20   past.   

21                  MS. STEINFELD:  Yes.  

22                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  For permit projects but 

23   presumably it will be a similar exercise.  But this is 

24   the standard language that is used. 
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 1                  MS. STEINFELD:  It's a difficult 

 2   threshold to make, but we've been able to make it so 

 3   far.   

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:  Oh, all right.   

 5                  MS. STEINFELD:  But, obviously, there 

 6   are no assurances, but the state is very strict about 

 7   it. 

 8                  MR. ZUROFF:  All right. I appreciate 

 9   that it's standard, and, you know, obviously, it's my 

10   preference that as much of the population can be local 

11   as could be.   

12                  On number 13, I know that it says that 

13   the buildings in the project shall conform to the 

14   architectural plans.  Is that specific enough?  Or 

15   should we say that the building plans will conform as 

16   closely as possible to the architectural  

17   preservation --  

18                  MS. SELKOE:  Well, actually, I mean, I 

19   think you've raised a good point.  Perhaps we should 

20   have a date to review the plan. 

21                  MR. ZUROFF:  In as much specificity as 

22   possible. 

23                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Well, the architectural 

24   plans are actually defined on page two of the 
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 1   decision.  So there's a specific reference to in the 

 2   plan set of July 13, 2018 as the final plan set for 

 3   the architectural.  So those are defined.  

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:  Those are the last ones 

 5   that we have seen? 

 6                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Correct. 

 7                  MR. ZUROFF:  But, again, I think for 

 8   clarification, it should be that rather than saying 

 9   the buildings in the project and the units in the 

10   building shall conform to the architectural plans, 

11   that the building plans themselves will be in 

12   compliance with the architectural presentations that 

13   we've had, those plans.  I mean, all we have is the 

14   pictures, which are nice, but, you know, the building 

15   plans themselves, which you're actually getting a 

16   permit for, should be -- could be -- should be the 

17   same or matchup with the architectural plans.  I would 

18   assume that's not a problem, but it doesn't actually 

19   say that.  

20                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  I have no objection.  We 

21   don't have an objection to doing that.  I think the 

22   intent of this language is the first sentence says, 

23   "When you build these buildings, they have to be in 

24   accordance with these plans that you've submitted."  
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 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  Which implies that --  

 2                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Well, then the second 

 3   sentence, "Well, how is the town going to assure 

 4   itself that that's the case?" And what the second 

 5   sentence in this condition says is, "The way the town 

 6   is going to assure itself that that's the case is that 

 7   the applicant has to submit final plans for review for 

 8   consistency with the plans that we submitted as part 

 9   of this process."  So that was the intent.  But if you 

10   want to change the language along the lines of what 

11   you said, we certainly have no objection. 

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  I'm open -- 

13                  MS. STEINFELD:  I would suggest that's 

14   it's stronger -- it's written in the buildings, the 

15   actual buildings as opposed to just the plans.   

16                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yeah, but they're going for 

17   a permit to build, and the only thing that they get 

18   approval for is the plans for those buildings.  I 

19   understand the end result is the same, but, you know, 

20   after they've built it, it's too late to say, well, 

21   they don't comply.  I'm just trying to be as clear as 

22   possible.   

23                  At the same point on number 17, the 

24   final landscaping plans, are they subject to 
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 1   somebody's approval?  They're consistent, but who 

 2   actually signs off on them? 

 3                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  That would be the 

 4   planning director. 

 5                  MS. STEINFELD:  For review and approval?  

 6                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yes. 

 7                  MS. PALERMO:  Yes, to determine that 

 8   they're consistent with the plans that were presented 

 9   to us, which is typical. 

10                  MR. ZUROFF:  And it's typical.  Again, 

11   point of clarification on paragraph 23, "Applicant to 

12   certify by the fire chief and building commissioner 

13   that the buildings have been enhanced with sprinkler 

14   systems, et cetera." Does it go beyond that?  Do they 

15   actually inspect it to make sure that they do actually 

16   have -- are certifying that they have?  

17                  MR. HUSSEY:  They do that to sign off on 

18   the building permit closed out the building department 

19   does do inspection. 

20                  MS. SELKOE:  For certificate of 

21   occupancy, they'll come in.  

22                  MR. ZUROFF:  No, I know that's probably 

23   the case but I didn't see it here.  Just whether it 

24   should be subject to the final inspection by the fire 
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 1   department or chief inspector or whomever has 

 2   jurisdiction. 

 3                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Just as a point of 

 4   information, for a project like this, we kind of use 

 5   the term in the trade it's going to be controlled 

 6   construction, which Chris may be aware of that term.  

 7   So what that means is that it's reliant on 

 8   certifications from qualified professionals to the 

 9   town on a regular basis as to compliance, and the town 

10   -- not to say that they don't have their own 

11   inspectors and inspections, they do, but they rely on 

12   those certifications. They're really affidavits under, 

13   you know, serious -- 

14                  MR. ZUROFF:  If that's normal practice, 

15   that's fine.  I just figured -- 

16                  MR. HUSSEY:  It is a normal practice in 

17   my experience. 

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  Okay. Then it doesn't need 

19   any further clarification.   

20                  I already asked that question about the 

21   demolition.   

22                  You can jump in at any time.  I'm moving 

23   through my notes.  Number 29, I just I know it applies 

24   to storm drains and control and mosquito control.  I 
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 1   don't know, and maybe the people in charge do, whether 

 2   that includes monitoring the horse sanctuary to make 

 3   sure that there's no runoff -- unnecessary runoff, 

 4   over-runoff of pesticides or whatever. 

 5                  MS. SELKOE:  Specifically, you mean for 

 6   the pesticides --  

 7                  MR. ZUROFF:  Right.  

 8                  MS. SELKOE:  -- not for the water.  

 9                  MR. ZUROFF:  And drainage.  I mean, it's 

10   all part of the plan.  

11                  MS. SELKOE:  Right. 

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  And, again, if it's not 

13   necessary I'm just asking the question.  

14                  MS. SELKOE:  Well, I think the point is 

15   if it runs off, it would runoff in the water as you 

16   said, and the drainage plan is going to be reviewed to 

17   make sure -- and it's already been --  

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  It's been vetted.   

19                  MS. SELKOE:  -- vetted by the peer 

20   consultant. 

21                  MR. ZUROFF:  Okay. So there's no further 

22   testing necessary.  Any other comments?  I'm moving 

23   ahead.   

24                  On paragraph 44 having to do with 

0022

 1   monitoring the wear-and-tear on the roads.  Is there 

 2   an affirmative duty on the part of the developer 

 3   should there be discovered that there's damage to the 

 4   roadways that they repair them?   

 5                  MS. SELKOE:  There typically is.  It 

 6   says, "Then again prior to issuance of a Certificate 

 7   of Occupancy to ensure construction traffic does not 

 8   adversely affect the pavement."  So at that time they 

 9   wouldn't get the CEO unless the pavement was --  

10                  MR. ZUROFF:  Okay. Again, for 

11   clarification, I just wanted to make sure even though 

12   it's implied, and it's held over their heads that they 

13   have an affirmative duty to make repairs as necessary. 

14                  MS. SELKOE:  Yes. 

15                  MR. ZUROFF:  But we'll leave it alone. 

16                  MS. SELKOE:  Yeah, I think, you know, 

17   they won't get the CEO unless it's done.   

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  On paragraph 61.  Just as a 

19   matter of clarification, again, I'm presuming that 

20   because the developer is in theory proposing an 

21   alternative plan that whatever construction is 

22   commenced will commence with the big building before 

23   they start building the infill buildings because their 

24   at least expressed intent is not to build the infill 
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 1   buildings. 

 2                  MS. SELKOE:  I think that was their 

 3   intent.  

 4                  MR. LEVIN:  The big -- the so-called  

 5   the --  

 6                  MR. ZUROFF:  The Sherman building.   

 7                  MR. LEVIN:  The Sherman building. You're 

 8   asking -- 

 9                  MR. ZUROFF:  I mean, you're going to be 

10   doing -- I don't know if the timing of the relative -- 

11   you haven't filed yet, as I understand it.  So you're 

12   going to start the project once you get this permit. 

13                  MR. LEVIN:  Yes. 

14                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  So it is theoretically at 

15   least possible that we be -- build the Sherman 

16   building before starting and quite possible before 

17   starting the alternative project, in which case that's 

18   what we would do and once --  

19                  MR. ZUROFF:  I mean, it makes sense for 

20   you, if you're pursuing the other project, not to 

21   start construction on buildings that may not be built 

22   soon.  

23                  MR. LEVIN:  Correct. 

24                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Oh, yeah, if your 
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 1   question is would we build the project that you're 

 2   approving while we're still pursuing the alternative 

 3   project, the answer is clearly no.   

 4                  MR. LEVIN:  You mean the 12 units.   

 5                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah, the 12 units.  I 

 6   mean, respectfully, I don't think you need to say that 

 7   because we would --  

 8                  MR. ZUROFF:  No, it's a question for 

 9   clarification.  Theoretically, this permit gives you 

10   the right to start construction everywhere.  You may 

11   be clearing the site where it may not have to be 

12   cleared, and, again, I don't know that it needs to be 

13   specified because as you say it doesn't make sense for 

14   you to do things.  On the other hand, it doesn't say 

15   that. 

16                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Well, in part the way 

17   they ended up with this language was trying to be 

18   responsive to something you said at a prior hearing 

19   which is that you want to be careful that the board 

20   was not directing the applicant to pursue the other 

21   project, or just acknowledging that we were pursuing 

22   the other project, and if we obtained the approvals 

23   for it, then we would be coming back here for 

24   modification of this term.   
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 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  For modification. 

 2                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  So that's where we ended 

 3   up, which I think is fine.  If you had seen fit to 

 4   say, well, we direct you to pursue that other  

 5   project -- 

 6                  MR. ZUROFF:  I wouldn't presume to do 

 7   that. 

 8                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Then it could have led to 

 9   you're saying, and you won't build this first project 

10   until you finish the process of the other one.  

11                  MR. ZUROFF:  Because as a practical 

12   matter, I am sure you will do what is practical but, 

13   again, this permit allows you to do whatever you want 

14   under this permit.  Maybe I'm just expressing 

15   thoughts, but anyway.   

16                  On number 63 having to do with the 

17   playgrounds.  Now, this is the alternative plan versus 

18   the presented plan. 

19                  MR. LEVIN:  Actually, there are small 

20   images here.  I have them on the big screen. 

21                  MR. ZUROFF:  The plans?   

22                  MR. LEVIN:  Yeah, but they are in the 

23   back.  

24                  MS. SELKOE:  They're in an attachment.  
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 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  No, no, I've seen the plan.  

 2   I'm fine with that.  I'm just wondering it says, 

 3   "Construction of such playground shall be 

 4   substantially completed within one year of the date of 

 5   the issuance to the final certificate of occupancy."  

 6   By that time presumably you will determine which 

 7   playground you're going to build, but my question is 

 8   what if it's not built within a year?   

 9                  MR. LEVIN:  Well, I think that that 

10   question applies to a number of these conditions.  For 

11   instance, what comes to mind is within reaching 90 

12   percent occupancy I think it is, we have to conduct a 

13   traffic study, and then if issues are raised in that 

14   study that there's some money to mitigate, you know, 

15   you can ask the same question, what if we didn't do 

16   that after you have your CEO.  There's a few of those 

17   in there.  We're supposed to do post -- 

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yeah, I see them as 

19   potential dead ends.  

20                  MS. SELKOE:  This isn't prior to the 

21   issuance of a building permit. 

22                  MS. PALERMO:  No, it's prior to the 

23   issuance -- well, I would assume if they failed to 

24   perform any of these conditions that the town would 
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 1   have a cause of action against the developer. 

 2                  MR. LEVIN:  Would that not be true with 

 3   any? 

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:  No, I'm sure it is.  I'm 

 5   just wondering what kind of enforcements, and maybe 

 6   I'm just, again, asking questions I don't know the 

 7   answers to.  I'm just interested to know. 

 8                  MS. SELKOE:  The enforcement is by the 

 9   building commissioner, and, I mean, let's say that 

10   they haven't rented all the units, then the building 

11   commissioner would make them stop until this was 

12   completely fulfilled. 

13                  MR. ZUROFF:  Okay. Again, it was a what-

14   if question. 

15                  MR. LEVIN:  So we don't like to cross 

16   the building commissioner because he's got all kinds 

17   of tools that he can apply that enforce --  

18                  THE COURT REPORTER:  Can you just speak 

19   up a little bit?  

20                  MR. LEVIN:  I said we don't like to 

21   cross the building inspector because he has all kinds 

22   of mechanisms to make our lives miserable if we do 

23   something like that. 

24                  MR. ZUROFF:  And I also know his plate 
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 1   is fairly full, so he doesn't want to be involved in 

 2   the enforcement of these things. 

 3                  MR. LEVIN:  Nor do we.   

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:  All right. That's the 

 5   summation of my findings. I appreciate your clarifying 

 6   some of my questions, but beyond those matters, I 

 7   really don't have any issues. 

 8                  MS. SELKOE:  Do you want me to sum up 

 9   what needs to be altered or modified? 

10                  MR. ZUROFF:  If you would like to, I 

11   would appreciate it. 

12                  MS. SELKOE:  I think under the 

13   conditions you want us to add the findings under 

14   number eight.  Under number eight the findings, you 

15   want us to put that in as a condition and that is a 

16   99-year lease has to be completed before they start 

17   building. 

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  Right.  As a question, a 

19   99-year lease should it be recorded in the registry of 

20   deeds?  

21                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Well, a notice of the 

22   lease would be recorded --  

23                  MS. STEINFELD:  Could the attorneys in 

24   the room draft that condition right now?  
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 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  Can we drop that condition?  

 2                  MS. STEINFELD:  Draft -- write it. 

 3   Provide the actual language. 

 4                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yep.  

 5                  MS. STEINFELD:  We could go back to it 

 6   if you want.   

 7                  MR. ZUROFF:  We know what it is. 

 8                  MS. SELKOE:  We could have town  

 9   counsel -- 

10                  MR. ZUROFF:  So language could be 

11   provided by the petitioner's counsel. 

12                  MS. STEINFELD:  Does that satisfy you?   

13                  MR. ZUROFF:  I think so.  As long as we 

14   know we're dealing with the same issue, and it's 

15   fairly clear.   

16                  MS. STEINFELD:  Okay. I just want to 

17   make sure you're comfortable that they draft the 

18   language.   

19                  MS. SELKOE:  And then condition of 

20   number 13 which was under architecture, do you want us 

21   to add the word plans under buildings, building plans? 

22                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yes.   

23                  MS. SELKOE:  And under number 17. 

24                  MS. PALERMO:  Can I stop for --  
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 1                  MS. SELKOE:  Sure.  

 2                  MR. ZUROFF:  Of course.  

 3                  MS. PALERMO:  Now, number 13, I thought 

 4   we left it as is because we want the buildings to 

 5   conform to the plans. 

 6                  MR. ZUROFF:  Oh, we want the buildings 

 7   and the plans. 

 8                  MS. PALERMO:  But the second sentence, 

 9   as Alison pointed out, provides that the plans have to 

10   be submitted to her, and then she has to determine 

11   that they conform to the plans, so we've covered -- 

12                  MR. ZUROFF:  Chris, correct me if I'm 

13   wrong, the building plans are more comprehensive than 

14   simply the architectural plans. 

15                  MR. HUSSEY:  No, well, the architectural 

16   plans are submitted to the various boards like the 

17   building inspector to get approval. 

18                  MR. ZUROFF:  So they have all the 

19   details in them?  

20                  MR. HUSSEY:  Yeah.  

21                  MR. LEVIN:  So the way I understand this 

22   to work --  

23                  MS. STEINFELD:  Can you talk louder? 

24                  MR. LEVIN:  The way I understand this to 
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 1   work is that you have a set of schematic plans that 

 2   we've taken it to a schematic level, and that we've 

 3   all agreed that this is the building that is going to 

 4   be built.  The next step would be to do construction 

 5   documents, CDs and we submit those CDs not only for 

 6   the building inspector to see if they comply with code 

 7   but to the planning director to make sure that the 

 8   plans conform to the plan set that goes along with 

 9   this. 

10                  MR. ZUROFF:  So altogether, are those 

11   considered the architectural plans? 

12                  MR. LEVIN:  Yes. 

13                  MR. ZUROFF:  They are. 

14                  MS. SELKOE:  I mean, in a way you 

15   wouldn't need that first sentence at all because the 

16   second sentence covers -- 

17                  MS. PALERMO:  I think if for some reason 

18   this is necessary for the building inspector, I 

19   wouldn't take the sentence out because the building 

20   inspector inspects the building and says, actually, 

21   this didn't come out exactly.  You've put in three 

22   staircases instead of two.  I'm just saying 

23   hypothetically. 

24                  MR. LEVIN:  They would look at it before 
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 1   to make sure it's conformed. 

 2                  MS. PALERMO:  And they'll look at it 

 3   during construction. 

 4                  MS. SELKOE:  So we're not adding plans 

 5   to the first sentence.   

 6                  MS. PALERMO:  I would not.  

 7                  MS. SELKOE:  Because it's in the second, 

 8   is that agreed?  

 9                  MR. ZUROFF:  I'm fine with that if 

10   that's encompassed within the definition. 

11                  MS. SELKOE:  And on number 17, we are 

12   adding the word and approval. So the applicant shall 

13   submit final landscaping plans to the planning 

14   director who will review an approval to determine that 

15   they are consistent with site plans listed in item 3 

16   under procedural history. 

17                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yes.  That's it?  So that's 

18   the end of the board's comments.   

19                  MR. LEVIN:  I'm just finishing the 

20   condition that Alison ... 

21                  MR. ZUROFF:  Well, you can take your 

22   time.  We can go to the public. 

23                  MS. SELKOE:  He's fast.   

24                  MS. STEINFELD:  Could you read it to the 
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 1   board? Just make sure that they -- 

 2                  MS. SELKOE:  Of course. 

 3                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  If you want me to --  

 4                  MS. SELKOE:  It's pretty clear.  I think 

 5   I could have read his handwriting.  

 6                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  Well, thank you.  That's 

 7   very nice of you to say.  "Prior to the commencement 

 8   of construction, the applicants shall have entered 

 9   into a ground lease of the site creating the lot 

10   referenced in item 8 of the findings, and shall record 

11   with Norfolk Registry of Deeds a notice of said ground 

12   lease.  The applicant shall provide evidence to the 

13   planning director of the recording of the notice of 

14   ground lease." 

15                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yeah, I guess that will 

16   work.   

17                  All right. Thank you. Public comments 

18   about the decision or the waivers?  There are none.  

19   Okay.  

20                  MS. ALLAIRE:  I'm Saralynn Allaire from 

21   the town meeting, and I just want to reiterate the 

22   town meeting members' objection to the project based 

23   on size, that's in term of the number of units.  And I 

24   think you're wanting to take a whole Hancock Village 
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 1   approach, so you need to think about the other 

 2   developments that are going on and proposed in 

 3   addition to this one.   

 4                  Also, the infill buildings, you know, 

 5   are just completely out of place.  Your consultant, as 

 6   I recall, said that they interfered with the flow of 

 7   the whole project.  I realize they may go at some 

 8   point.  And then the single building is just massive 

 9   in size, both in terms of footprint and height.  So I 

10   just would -- and Steve has previously said that there 

11   is precedent for reducing the size of a project by a 

12   group such as yours, and so I just ask that you 

13   consider that.   

14                  MR. ZUROFF:  Well, I appreciate your 

15   comment.  We've always been aware of the public's 

16   feeling about the project, but I do think that we have 

17   had our peer reviewers review everything.  The density 

18   of the project, the number of units and the size of 

19   the project is something that we did consider, we did 

20   get it to be smaller, but in my opinion, we have taken 

21   all of that into consideration given the mandate that 

22   was given to us by the statute.  And in my opinion, in 

23   spite of the fact that I may also have objections to 

24   excise, the statute mandates what we have gone 
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 1   through.  Our peer reviewers have given us the 

 2   feedback that we were required to get, and I think 

 3   that we have reached an amicable decision based on 

 4   what we have been given to work with.          

 5                  What my personal feelings are, what your 

 6   personal feelings are have some bearing, but not 

 7   enough to overturn the statute.  That's my opinion.   

 8                  Based on what we have, I think that 

 9   unless we have something else to deal with this 

10   evening, and subject to the revisions that have been 

11   proposed for the final decision, the board can express 

12   their opinions on whether they want to accept this as 

13   the decision of the board or not, and it has to be 

14   unanimous or majority.  It's a majority. 

15                  MR. SCHWARTZ:  My understanding is that 

16   in a 40B decision -- in a 40A decision when you have a 

17   three-member board it has to be unanimous.  In a 40B 

18   decision, it can be two out of the three. 

19                  MR. HUSSEY:  I stand corrected. 

20                  THE COURT REPORTER:  I can't hear you. 

21                  MR. HUSSEY:  I stand corrected.  Mr. 

22   Schwartz is right.   

23                  MR. ZUROFF:  So, Chris?   

24                  MR. HUSSEY:  Yes.  
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 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  Yes or no? 

 2                  MR. HUSSEY:  I would vote in favor. 

 3                  MR. ZUROFF:  Lark? 

 4                  MS. PALERMO:  Yes, I also vote in favor 

 5   of the grant. 

 6                  MR. ZUROFF:  And based on your 

 7   interpretation of the law, notwithstanding the fact 

 8   that my vote doesn't matter, I also am willing to 

 9   approve the project as presented, and I do appreciate 

10   that the developer made some compromises.  I sincerely 

11   hope that the alternative project is pursued as has 

12   been promised because, again, the peer reviewer did 

13   recommend that the infill buildings would be -- it 

14   would be better served if they weren't there.  That 

15   will be subject to the sitting board, whoever it is, 

16   in your pursuit of that project.   

17                  MS. SELKOE:  So you'll have to close the 

18   hearing -- 

19                  MS. STEINFELD:  Excuse me, two things? 

20                  MR. ZUROFF:  Alison, of course. 

21                  MS. STEINFELD:  Before you close the 

22   hearing.  One is I just want to in the past the board 

23   I believe has always voted the waivers.  I don't know 

24   if that's necessary.  Attorney Schwartz?   
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 1                  MR. ZUROFF:  We have gone through the 

 2   waivers already. 

 3                  MS. STEINFELD:  But there was no vote.  

 4   I don't know if it's necessary. 

 5                  MR. ZUROFF:  I'll put it to the board.  

 6   It'll be on the record.  Personally, I vote that we've 

 7   gone through the waivers.  I have no objection to the 

 8   waivers. They're pretty much the same waivers that 

 9   were granted on a similar project, and they have been 

10   vetted by the planning and building departments.  

11                  MS. SELKOE:  But the building 

12   commissioner who had actually asked to add one which 

13   they did about the width of the (inaudible.)  

14                  MR. ZUROFF:  So with that being said, I 

15   vote in favor of granting the waivers that are 

16   presented as part of the decision. 

17                  MR. HUSSEY:  I concur.   

18                  MS. PALERMO:  I concur.  

19                  MR. ZUROFF:  So the record will show 

20   that it is voted on, the waivers are approved.  The 

21   decision to be modified is approved. 

22                  MS. STEINFELD:  As modified -- has been 

23   modified. Oh, I'm sorry, yes. 

24                  MR. ZUROFF:  There are a couple of small 
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 1   tweaks. 

 2                  MS. SELKOE:  Yeah, I would think a vote 

 3   to authorize you to sign it when it's in final form.   

 4                  MR. ZUROFF:  Well, that's why I said 

 5   it's subject to those modifications.  I guess I should 

 6   ask the board for approval.  Will the board approve my 

 7   signing the decision as modified at the end?  

 8                  MR. HUSSEY:  I will. 

 9                  MS. PALERMO:  I will. 

10                  MR. ZUROFF:  So that is a final vote of 

11   the board.  Mr. Levin. 

12                  MR. LEVIN:  I would just like to thank, 

13   in particular, you and your board, the planning staff, 

14   especially as well, the neighbors and everyone who 

15   contributed to the consideration of our project, both 

16   in terms of constructive, you know, criticism and 

17   other that I, you know, I sincerely believe we ended 

18   up with a better project than what we came in with as 

19   far ago as we did.  I don't remember. It's been a 

20   couple of years now. 

21                  MR. ZUROFF:  2016. 

22                  MR. LEVIN:  2016.  So a couple of years 

23   ago with a pause, but nonetheless, it was a long 

24   enough process to hatch a better plan, and I want to 

0039

 1   thank everyone for that. 

 2                  MR. ZUROFF:  And I appreciate the 

 3   developer working with us.  That being said, the fact 

 4   that it took me so long to get here is evidence that 

 5   the traffic is getting worse, and I wish there were 

 6   less buildings going on in Brookline, but we are 

 7   compelled to do our duty. So I thank you all for 

 8   coming.  I thank the public for its input.   

 9                  MS. SELKOE:  You're officially closing 

10   the hearing.  

11                  MR. ZUROFF:  I am officially closing the 

12   hearing, and this meeting is now adjourned.  Thank you 

13   very much. 

14    

15                  (Whereupon the hearing was concluded at 

16        7:50 p.m.) 

17         

18         

19         

20         

21         

22         

23         

24         
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Page 2 Page 4
1 1 M. STENFELD (h, so it technically
2 2 isn't being recorded; it is being transcribed.
8 I NDEX 3 M ZWRFF:  Transcri bed.
4 4 M. STHINFELD. And we're not on
PAGE -
5 5 television.
Pr oceedi ngs 3 6 M ZURCFF:  V¢'re not on tel evision.
6 7 I'mglad to hear that. | didn't do ny makeup.
7 8 So that being said, the agenda for this
8 9 evening is that we will have -- we have before us a
9 10 proposed deci sion, which includes the proposed waivers
10 11 that we've already discussed. It is ny intention to
11 12 go through the decision paragraph by paragraph to see
12 13 whether the board nenbers have any conments on it, to
13 14 hear --
14 15 MS. SELKCE  Though you may renenber at
5 16 our last hearing, | did read through each one of the
16 o
1 17 conditions.
18 18 MR ZURCFF  Ckay. But at the tine, we
19 19 had not had a chance to --
20 20 M5. SELKCE VeI, it hadn't been
21 21 online.
22 22 MR ZURCFF And it hadn't been
23 23 available to --
24 24 MS. SELKCE But it is nowand al so
Page 3 Page 5
1 1 online hadn't been all the attachments, which are
2 2 therenow So at the last hearing people fromthe
3 PROCEEDI NGS 3 public couldn't coment because they hadn't been
4 M ZIRFF:  Good evening, |adies and 4 online.
5 gentlemen. ['mcalling to order this neeting of the 5 M ZIRCFF Rght. And | have sone
6 Zoning Board of Appeals. M nane is Mrk Zuroff. | 6 coments on them too. SoI'dlike to go through the
7 apol ogi ze for keeping you waiting a few mnutes. 7 decision. V¢'re not going to read the entire
8 Brookline hasn't done anything to aneliorate the 8 decision, but we're going to go through it paragraph
9 traffic onthe way to the town hall. So with that 9 by paragraph. |f the board has any comments, they can
10 being said, we are here this evening for a neeting 10 nake them ¢ will then hear fromthe devel opnent
11 concerning the project called Puddi ngstone 265-299 11 team if they have any conments or questions. V& will
12 Gerry Road. Tonight, well, first, let ne introduce 12 also hear fromthe public as to the decision itself.
13 board nenbers sitting with ne for the record. To ny 13 And then we' Il discuss whether we're going to come to
14 left is Lark Palerno, to her left is Christopher 14 afinal decision tonight. \¥ nmay, depending on
15 Hussey, and we have Pol |y Sel koe fromthe Pl anning 15 whether the tine allows.
16  Departnent here. 16 So without any further delay, |ady and
17 | remind everyone who wi shes to speak 17 gentleman, you want to go through the decision, you
18 tonight that it is being recorded, as all of our 18 nay have sone conments. |f you do, let's hear them
19 hearings are, and so that if you wish to speak for the |19 MS. PALERMD Wl I, | have actually --
20 record, does that nicrophone work? 20 1'dliketo get a better understanding as to the
21 AD ENCE MEMBER  No. 21 nunber of units --
22 M ZRGFF: No.  Then just shout it 22 MS. STENFELD  Alittle bit |ouder,
23 out. V¢ vant to hear you, and we want to make sure 23 please.
24 that we have an accurate transcription. 24 MS. PALERMO  Alittle louder, okay.
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PROCEEDI NGS - 10/ 24/ 2018 Pages 6..9
Page 6 Page 8
1 M5. SELKCE  You know, because the 1 of which are in Brookline.
2 systemin back makes so much noi se. 2 M LEMN Correct.
3 M5, PALERMD  Ckay. The nunber of units 3 M. PAERMD Soif | take 230 and |
4 in Hancock Village, according to this decision, is 789 4  subtract 14, | end up with a total of 216 units in
5 with 530 in Brookline. And | keep in nind the fact 5 Brookline. If | subtract the full 22, then | end up
6 that we do have this entire project that thisis a 6 at Hancock Village with a proposal, in essence, to add
7 piece that fitsinit. Andin the third paragraph of 7 208 units which is -- aml| mssing sonething? Wich
8 the findings, there is an explanation of what was part 8 is less than 226 units.
9 of the original or what was the original project, and 9 M LEMIN That's correct.
10 that it would create 230 units of housing, correct? 10 MS. PALERVD  That's what | wanted to
11 MR ZURGFF:  That's what it says. 11 know So l'mlooking at this as | have said
12 MS. PALERMD  And then the new proposal, |12 previously as a whol e devel opnent, a piece of whichis
13 which is what 1'd like confirmation of, the proposal 13 the 40B and what inpact does that -- this 40B have on
14 we're dealing with now, has included withinit -- 14 the whol e devel opnent, the traffic, the pedestrian
15 MR SCHMRTZ  Paragraph two of the 15 traffic, the motor vehicle traffic, all of that is
16 findings was the original project and paragraph two 16 driven by the nunber of units. Soin fact, the nunber
17 thirty is the revised project. 17 of units really is less than what you originally
18 M5, PALERMO  Thank you. Sorry, | 18 proposed to do; is that right? Because you're
19 msspoke. It was 226. |'msorry, | msspoke, 226, 19  denolishing three buildings.
20 and then this new proposal is 230. And the reason I'm |20 M SCHMRTZ | think it's right.
21 raising thisis I've heard on several occasions from 21 MS. PALERMD  Maybe not.
22 the neighborhood that the nunber of units is actually 22 MR LEVIN The way you say it is right.
23 increasing, and unless ny math is wong, if you | ook 23 MR SCHMRTZ But there's one thing
24 at all of Hancock Village, this proposal is fewer 24 just to be clear about it. Inthe original proposal,
Page 7 Page 9
1 units than the one that was originally proposed, and 1 there was the renovation -- part of that proposal was
2 that's why | want confirnation. 2 the renovation of 28 buil dings.
3 And I'I1 tell you how! got there, and 3 MS. PALERMD  Wich wasn't real Iy
4 naybe you can correct me if 1'mwong. 4 adding.
5 Qiginally, you proposed 226 rental 5 MR SCHMRTZ R ght, so when we tal ked
6 units and that included 186 in the |arge building and 6 about 226 total units, that included 28 renovated
7 12 inthe new apartnent units, and you were renovating 7 units. So those units exist but they were being
8 28 apartments in 3 existing two-story buildings, and 8 renovated.
9 that's howyou came up wth 226. 9 M ZIRF o the net --
10 Now you're building a new building -- 10 M SCHMRTZ Sothe net is -- soif
11 your proposal is to build a newbuilding that wll 11 you really wanted to be totally apples to apples in
12 continue -- let ne find the nunber. 12 terns of the total nunber of newunits, | think your
13 M ZURCFF:  Two hundred and ei ght een 13 analysis is correct. The total nunber of new units in
14 units. 14 our proposal now after you take out the denolitionis
15 M5, PALERMO  Two hundred and ei ght een 15 208, Hancock Village as a whol e.
16 and twelve in the new construction, and you are 16 If you look at the total nunber of new
17 denol i shing three buil dings. 17 units in the original proposal, newunits, in other
18 M LEMN h, yes, absolutely. 18 words that would be -- | believe it's 196 because the
19 MB. PALERMD  You' re denol i shing three 19 28 that you're referring to are existing units that
20 buildings, and those three buildings, as | understand 20 woul d' ve been renovat ed.
21 it, have a total of -- where is the total? | think 21 MS. PALERMD  Right.
22 it's 22 22 MR SCHMRTZ So the point is it's not
23 MR SCHMRTZ  Tuwenty-two. 23 -- you can look at it in any nunber of ways. It's --
24 MB. PALERMO  Twenty-two units, fourteen |24 fromny own point of view it's pretty much a wash in
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Page 10

Page 12

1 terns of the total nunmber of units, but | just want to 1 Wés there a need for approval for the subdivision that

2 be clear that as a response to the way you were 2 created this lot?

3 analyzingit. 3 M SCHMRTZ No, it's by a 99-year

4 M5, PALERMO  Thank you. No, well, | was | 4 ground |ease which is part of our -- under the

5 doing this quickly this afternoon, and | thought, "Am 5 Brookline zoning, 99 ground |ease is considered to a

6 | doing this right?" But you're right because -- but 6 separate lot for zoning purposes.

7 it does seemto be al nost equivalent the long and 7 M5. SHKCE But is there such as a

8 short of this, then. Ckay. 8 ground | ease there?

9 MR ZURGFF:  The original proposed as 9 MR SCHMRTZ There is a proposal to

10  opposed to this one? 10 enter into a ground | ease which woul d be consumat ed

1 M5, PALERMD  CQorrect. 11  before we start.

12 MR ZURGFF:  (kay. | think you have the |12 M ZIRFF:  So that would have to be a

13 nunbers right. That's all I'll say. 13 precondition to the issuance of this permt, no? It's

14 M5, PALERMD  Thank you. That was 14 not in the conditions, but | think it should be added

15 actually the only coment | have. 15 Ckay. Mwing on, any other -- | have a

16 M ZRGFF: Al right. 1'mgoing to go |16 coment on nunber 12. Do you have anything?

17 through. M question on -- with regard to paragraph 17 M. PAERVMD No

18 fivewas it refers to twenty percent of the units in 18 M ZURCFF  This is the first reference

19 the budget for rental by househol ds earning at or 19 inthe decision to the alternative project, and I'm

20 belowfifty percent of the Boston area nedian incone. 20 wondering whether this |anguage actual |y depicts what

21 M clarification questionis this. 21 was discussed and what we've all sort of understood

22 Boston area nedian i ncome enconpasses how | arge an 22 because | understand you intend to apply for the

23 area? It's not just -- 23 necessary pernits for the alternative devel opnent.

24 MR SCHMRTZ It's technically the 24 did not understand originally, and maybe | missed it
Page 11 Page 13

1 Boston/ Canbri dge/ Quincy netropolitan statistical area, 1 that that alternative plan was that you were creating

2 wvhich is the HID deternination for what our 2 36 newunits, or you're renovating 36 new units?

3 netropolitan statistical areais essentially in the 3 M SCHMRTZ (reating

4 Qeater Boston area. That's howit's referred to 4 M ZURCFF:  And where was that?

5 technically. I'msorry? Yeah, it's nost of eastern 5 M LEMIN In place of the Gerry

6 -- it's the bulk of what we would call Geater 6 garage.

7 Boston/Eastern Massachusetts not including, you know, 7 M ZIRFF Oh soit's replacing the

8 the South -- South Shore or North Shore, clearly, 8 garage. All right. Maybe | mssed that

9 Wrcester County or west, but that's the whol e area 9 MR SCHMRTZ But it's the renoval of

10 that we're talking about. |If you drewa line pretty 10 what we call the infill building. So those three

11 much, you know, fromQuincy going up, probably to, you |11 buildings --

12 know | would say Chel sea, you know, that area and 12 MR ZURCFF: N, | understand the three

13 kind of -- 13 -- the twelve units are disappearing as part of that

14 MR ZURCFF:  Inside 128, basically. 14 but | didn't understand, and maybe | missed it, that

15 M SCHMRTZ Inside 128. That's 15 you're adding thirty-six newunits. But they're on

16 pretty much consistent. 16  another parcel, correct? Ckay

17 MR ZROFF: M point in asking that is |17 I'n paragraph one of the conditions,

18 the calcul ations are based not on Brookline or Newton 18 nowhere in here -- | know you're doi ng sonething wth

19 but on the entire area, which does nake it alittle 19 Boston -- you're denolishing a building in Boston.

20 bit nmore affordable conparatively to Brookline. | 20 Should this not be subject to Boston approval for the

21 just wanted to be clear on that. 21 demolition of a building there?

22 And ny next question has to do with in 22 MR SCHMRTZ V¢ added -- there was a

23 paragraph eight it says that this is considered a 23 condition added | believe that all the necessary

24 single lot. Has there been already a subdivision? 24 approval s woul d be obtained fromthe city of Boston.
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Page 14 Page 16
1 M. SELKCE Rght. | think we added it | 1 MS. STEENFELD: It's a difficult
2 towards the end. 2 threshold to make, but we've been able to make it so
3 MR ZWRCFF: | nay have nmissed that. | 3 far.
4 do recall a paragraph that refers to all necessary 4 M ZIRCFF: h, all right.
5 approvals fromall authorities. 5 MB. STEINFELD:  But, obviously, there
6 MR SCHMRTZ  Yeah, | think we added 6 are no assurances, but the state is very strict about
7 specifically a reference to the city of Boston in 7 it.
8 that, but I'Il try and findit. 8 M ZURGFF: Al right. | appreciate
9 AUD ENCE MEMBER  It's on page 13, item | 9 that it's standard, and, you know obviously, it's ny
10 J of 35J. 10 preference that as much of the popul ation can be | ocal
1 M SCHMRTZ Yes. Thank you. 11  as could be.
12 MR ZURCFF:  (h, okay. It is covered. 12 Oh nunber 13, | knowthat it says that
13 Thank you. Sorry. Al right. Let's keep going. 13 the buildings in the project shall conformto the
14 M question on nunber seven, | knowyou |14 architectural plans. |s that specific enough? O
15 give preference to Brookline residents for the 15 should we say that the building plans will conformas
16 affordable units. It says up to 70 percent. Is that 16 closely as possible to the architectural
17 standard or can we require 70 percent? 17 preservation --
18 M5, SHKCE Wiich nunber are you on? 18 MS. SHKCE \eéll, actually, | mean, |
19 M ZURCFF:  Nunber -- paragraph seven, |19 think you' ve raised a good point. Perhaps we shoul d
20 top of page seven. 20 have a date to reviewthe plan.
21 MS. SHKCE Aison, | don't know you 21 M ZURGFF:  In as much specificity as
22 answered that. 22 possible.
23 MS. STENFELD | believe it's standard |23 MR SCHMRTZ Wl I, the architectural
24 language that we used in the past. 24 plans are actual ly defined on page two of the

Page 15 Page 17
1 M ZIRFF. Soit's a preference, but 1 decision. Sothere's a specific reference toin the
2 it's not a requirenent? 2 plan set of July 13, 2018 as the final plan set for
3 MR SCHMRTZ  Yeah. 3 the architectural. So those are defined.
4 MB. STHNFELD It can't be a 4 M ZWRCFF:  Those are the | ast ones
5 requirenent. 5 that we have seen?
6 M SCHMRTZ If | could just -- DHD- | 6 M SCHMRTZ Correct.
7 - the town -- the process is the town needs to subnit 7 M ZURCFF  But, again, | think for
8 kind of ajustification for a local preference, and 8 clarification, it should be that rather than saying
9 then DHD or the subsidizing agency has to approve 9 the buildings in the project and the units in the
10 that, and, you know, what the rationale is and how 10 building shall conformto the architectural plans,
11 local preference is defined. And | think it's 11 that the building plans thenselves will be in
12 typically up to 70 percent, soit's not a mandate for 12 conpliance with the architectural presentations that
13 70 percent. But the concern that the state has is 13 we've had, those plans. | nean, all we have is the
14 that fair housing -- in comng up with a local 14 pictures, which are nice, but, you know, the building
15 preference -- that fair housing requirenents are net, 15 plans thensel ves, which you're actually getting a
16 soin terns of, you know diversity of the popul ation 16 pernit for, should be -- could be -- shoul d be the
17 that lives in the affordable units. So they will 17 sane or nmatchup with the architectural plans. | would
18 reviewthe town submission. |'mnot sure if the town 18 assune that's not a problem but it doesn't actually
19 has nade a subnmission for local preference in the 19 say that.
20 past. 20 MR SCHMRTZ | have no objection. V¢
21 MB. STENFELD  Yes. 21 don't have an objection to doing that. | think the
22 MR SCHMRTZ:  For pernit projects but 22 intent of this language is the first sentence says,
23 presumably it will be a simlar exercise. But thisis |23 "Wen you build these buildings, they have to be in
24 the standard | anguage that is used. 24 accordance with these plans that you' ve submtted."
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Page 20

1 MR ZURCFF:  Wich inplies that -- 1 department or chief inspector or whonmever has

2 MR SCHWMRTZ  Veéll, then the second 2 jurisdiction

3 sentence, "VélI, howis the town going to assure 3 MR SCHMRTZ Just as a point of

4 itself that that's the case?" And what the second 4 information, for a project like this, we kind of use

5 sentence in this condition says is, "The way the town 5 the termin the trade it's going to be control | ed

6 isgoingto assure itself that that's the case is that 6 construction, which Chris may be aware of that term

7 the applicant has to subnit final plans for reviewfor 7 Sowhat that means is that it's reliant on

8 consistency with the plans that we subnitted as part 8 certifications fromqualified professionals to the

9 of this process." Sothat was the intent. But if you 9 towi on aregular basis as to conpliance, and the town

10 want to change the | anguage al ong the Iines of what 10 -- not to say that they don't have their own

11  you said, we certainly have no objection. 11 inspectors and inspections, they do, but they rely on

12 MR ZRGFF:  |'mopen -- 12 those certifications. They're really affidavits under

13 MB. STEHNFELD. | woul d suggest that's 13 you know serious --

14 it's stronger -- it's witten in the buildings, the 14 M ZURCFF  If that's normal practice

15 actual buildings as opposed to just the plans. 15 that's fine. | just figured --

16 MR ZURGFF:  Yeah, but they're going for |16 MR HUSSEY: It is a normal practice in

17 apernit to build, and the only thing that they get 17 ny experience

18 approval for is the plans for those buildings. | 18 M ZURCFF  Ckay. Then it doesn't need

19 understand the end result is the same, but, you know 19 any further clarification

20 after they've built it, it's too late to say, well, 20 | already asked that question about the

21 they don't conply. I'mjust trying to be as clear as 21  demolition

22 possible. 22 You can junp in at any time. |'mnoving

23 At the same point on nunber 17, the 23 through ny notes. MNunber 29, | just | knowit applies

24 final landscaping plans, are they subject to 24 to stormdrains and control and nosquito control. |
Page 19 Page 21

1 sonebody's approval ? They're consistent, but who 1 don't know, and maybe the people in charge do, whether

2 actually signs off on then? 2 that includes nonitoring the horse sanctuary to nake

3 MR SCHMRTZ: That woul d be the 3 sure that there's no runoff -- unnecessary runof f

4 planning director. 4 over-runoff of pesticides or whatever

5 MS. STEINFELD.  For review and approval ? | 5 MS. SHKCE Specifically, you nean for

6 MR ZURCFF:  Yes. 6 the pesticides --

7 MS. PALERMD  Yes, to determine that 7 MR ZIRFF  Rght.

8 they're consistent with the plans that were presented 8 M. SHKCE -- not for the water.

9 tous, wichis typical. 9 MR ZUIRCFF.  And drainage. | nean, it's

10 M ZIRCFF:. And it's typical. Again, 10 all part of the plan

11 point of clarification on paragraph 23, "Applicant to 11 MS. SHKCE Rght.

12 certify by the fire chief and building conmissioner 12 MR ZIRFF  And, again, if it's not

13 that the buildings have been enhanced with sprinkler 13 necessary |'mjust asking the question

14 systens, et cetera.” Does it go beyond that? Do they 14 M5, SELKCE Véll, | think the point is

15 actually inspect it to make sure that they do actually |15 if it runs off, it would runoff in the water as you

16 have -- are certifying that they have? 16 said, and the drainage plan is going to be reviewed to

17 MR HUSSEY: They do that to sign off on |17 make sure -- and it's already been --

18 the building pernit closed out the building department |18 M ZURCFF  It's been vetted

19  does do inspection. 19 MS. SELKCE -- vetted by the peer

20 MB. SELKCE For certificate of 20 consultant.

21 occupancy, they'll cone in. 21 M ZIRFF Ckay. So there's no further

22 M ZIRFF. No, | knowthat's probably |22 testing necessary. Any other comments? |'mnoving

23 the case but | didn't see it here. Just whether it 23  ahead

24 shoul d be subject to the final inspection by the fire 24 (n paragraph 44 having to do with

Epi g Court Reporting Sol utions -

1-617-542-0039

Bost on
www. deposi ti on. com



http://www.deposition.com



PROCEEDI NGS

10/ 24/ 2018 Pages 22..25

Page 22

Page 24

1 nonitoring the wear-and-tear on the roads. |s there 1 questionis would we build the project that you're
2 an affirmative duty on the part of the devel oper 2 approving while we're still pursuing the alternative
3 should there be discovered that there's damage to the 3 project, the ansver is clearly no.
4 roadways that they repair then? 4 M LEVIN You nean the 12 units
5 MB. SELKCE There typically is. It 5 MR SCHMRTZ Yeah, the 12 units. |
6 says, "Then again prior to issuance of a Certificate 6 nean, respectfully, | don't think you need to say that
7 of Qccupancy to ensure construction traffic does not 7 because we woul d --
8 adversely affect the paverent." So at that tine they 8 MR ZIRFF N, it's a question for
9 wouldn't get the CEO unless the pavement was -- 9 clarification. Theoretically, this pernit gives you
10 MR ZUIRCFF:  Ckay. Again, for 10 theright to start construction everywhere. You nay
11 clarification, | just wanted to make sure even though 11  be clearing the site where it nay not have to be
12 it'sinplied, and it's held over their heads that they |12 cleared, and, again, | don't knowthat it needs to be
13 have an affirmative duty to nake repairs as necessary. |13 specified because as you say it doesn't make sense for
14 MB. SELKCE  Yes. 14 you to do things. n the other hand, it doesn't say
15 M ZURCFF: But we'll leave it alone. 15 that
16 MB. SELKCE  Yeah, | think, you know, 16 MR SCHMRTZ \Véll, in part the way
17 they won't get the CEOunless it's done. 17 they ended up with this language was trying to be
18 M ZURCFF.  (n paragraph 61. Just as a | 18 responsive to sonething you said at a prior hearing
19 matter of clarification, again, |'mpresumng that 19 whichis that you want to be careful that the board
20 because the devel oper is in theory proposing an 20 was not directing the applicant to pursue the other
21 alternative plan that whatever constructionis 21 project, or just acknow edging that we were pursuing
22 commenced will commence with the big building before 22 the other project, and if we obtained the approval s
23 they start building the infill buildings because their |23 for it, then we would be coning back here for
24 at least expressed intent is not to build the infill 24 modification of this term

Page 23 Page 25
1 buildings. 1 MR ZURCFF:  For nodification.
2 M5 SELKCE | think that was their 2 MR SCHMRTZ So that's where we ended
3 intent. 3 up, which | thinkis fine. If you had seen fit to
4 MR LEVIN The big -- the so-called 4 say, well, we direct you to pursue that other
5 the -- 5 oproject --
6 M ZURCFF:  The Sherman buil di ng. 6 M ZURCFF: | wouldn't presune to do
7 MR LEMN The Sherman building. You're | 7 that.
8 asking -- 8 MR SCHMRTZ Then it could have led to
9 M ZURCFF: | nean, you're going to be 9 you're saying, and you won't build this first project
10 doing -- | don't knowif the timng of the relative -- |10 until you finish the process of the other one.
11  you haven't filed yet, as | understand it. So you're 11 MR ZURCFF  Because as a practical
12 going to start the project once you get this pernit. 12 nmatter, | amsure you will do what is practical but,
13 M LEVN  Yes. 13 again, this permt allows you to do whatever you want
14 M SCHMRTZ Soit is theoretically at |14 under this permit. Mybe |'mjust expressing
15 least possible that we be -- build the Sherman 15 thoughts, but anyway
16  building before starting and quite possible before 16 O nunber 63 having to do with the
17 starting the alternative project, in which case that's |17 playgrounds. Now this is the alternative plan versus
18 what we would do and once -- 18 the presented plan.
19 M ZURCFF. | nean, it makes sense for |19 M LEVN Actually, there are small
20 you, if you're pursuing the other project, not to 20 inmges here. | have themon the big screen.
21 start construction on buildings that may not be built 21 MR ZWIRGFF  The plans?
22 soon. 22 MR LEVIN Yeah, but they are in the
23 MR LEMN Correct. 23 back.
24 M SCHMRTZ Ch, yeah, if your 24 MS. SELKCE They're in an attachment.
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1 M ZIRFF: No, no, I've seen the plan. | 1 is fairly full, so he doesn't want to be involved in
2 I'mfinewththat. |'mjust wondering it says, 2 the enforcenment of these things
3 "Qonstruction of such playground shal | be 3 M LEMN Nor do ve.
4 substantially conpleted within one year of the date of 4 M ZRCFF: Al right. That's the
5 the issuance to the final certificate of occupancy."” 5 sunmation of ny findings. | appreciate your clarifying
6 By that time presunably you will determ ne which 6 sone of ny questions, but beyond those matters,
7 playground you're going to build, but ny questionis 7 really don't have any issues.
8 what if it"s not built within a year? 8 M. SHKCE Do you want ne to sumup
9 M LEMN WII, | think that that 9 what needs to be altered or nodified?
10  question applies to a nunber of these conditions. For |10 M ZURCFF  If you would |ike to,
11 instance, what comes to mind is wthin reaching 90 11 woul d appreciate it.
12 percent occupancy | think it is, we have to conduct a |12 M. SEKCE | think under the
13 traffic study, and then if issues are raised in that 13 conditions you want us to add the findings under
14 study that there's sone noney to mitigate, you know 14 nunber eight. Under nunber eight the findings, you
15 you can ask the same question, what if we didn't do 15 want us to put that inas a condition and that is a
16 that after you have your CEQ There's a few of those 16  99-year |ease has to be conpleted before they start
17 inthere. V¢'re supposed to do post -- 17 building
18 M ZURCFF.  Yeah, | see themas 18 MR ZUIRCFF Rght. As a question, a
19 potential dead ends. 19  99-year |ease should it be recorded in the registry of
20 M. SHKCE Thisisn't prior tothe 20 deeds?
21 issuance of a building pernmt. 21 MR SCHMRTZ Wll, a notice of the
22 M. PALERMO No, it's prior to the 22 |ease woul d be recorded --
23 issuance -- well, | would assume if they failed to 23 MS. STENELD Gould the attorneys in
24 performany of these conditions that the town woul d 24 the roomdraft that condition right now?

Page 27 Page 29
1 have a cause of action against the devel oper. 1 MR ZURCFF:  Can we drop that condition?
2 M LEVN Wuld that not be true with 2 MS. STENFELD:  Draft -- wite it.
3 any? 3 Provide the actual |anguage
4 M ZURCFF No, I'msureit is. I'm 4 M SCHMWRTZ  Yep.
5 just wondering what kind of enforcenents, and naybe 5 MS. STEINFELD: V¢ coul d go back to it
6 |'mjust, again, asking questions | don't know the 6 if you want
7 answers to. |'mjust interested to know 7 M ZURCFF: V¢ know what it is.
8 MB. SHKCE The enforcenment is by the 8 MS. SHKCE V¢ could have town
9 building commssioner, and, | nean, let's say that 9 counsel --
10 they haven't rented all the units, then the building 10 M ZURCFF:  So language coul d be
11 conmissioner woul d make themstop until this was 11 provided by the petitioner's counsel
12 conpletely fulfilled. 12 MS. STENFELD Does that satisfy you?
13 M ZIRFF: Ckay. Again, it was a what- |13 M ZRCFF: | think so. As long as we
14 if question. 14 know we're dealing with the sane issue, and it's
15 M LEMN Sowe don't like to cross 15 fairly clear.
16  the building comissioner because he's got all kinds 16 MS. STENFELD  Ckay. | just want to
17 of tools that he can apply that enforce -- 17 nake sure you're confortable that they draft the
18 THE QOURT REPCRTER  Can you just speak |18 |anguage
19 wupalittlebit? 19 MS. SELKCE  And then condition of
20 MR LEMN | saidwe don't like to 20 nunber 13 which was under architecture, do you want us
21 cross the building inspector because he has all kinds 21 to add the word plans under buildings, building plans?
22 of mechanisns to nake our lives miserable if we do 22 MR ZIRCFF  Yes
23 sonething like that. 23 MS. SELKCE  And under nunber 17
24 M ZIRFF: And | also know his plate 24 M. PALERD  Can | stop for --
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1 M5, SHLKCE Sure. 1 to make sure it's conformed.
2 MR ZIRGFF: O course. 2 M5. PALERMD  And they' Il [ook at it
3 MS. PALERMD  Now, nunber 13, | thought 3 during construction.
4 weleft it as is because we want the buildings to 4 MS. SELKCE So we're not adding pl ans
5 conformto the plans. 5 tothe first sentence.
6 M ZIRCFF:  Ch, we want the buildings 6 M5, PALERMO | woul d not.
7 and the plans. 7 MS. SHKCE Because it's in the second,
8 Ms. PALERMD But the second sentence, 8 is that agreed?
9 as Alison pointed out, provides that the plans have to 9 M ZIRCFF  ['mfine with that if
10 be subnitted to her, and then she has to deternine 10 that's enconpassed within the definition.
11 that they conformto the plans, so we've covered -- 11 M5. SHKCE And on nunber 17, we are
12 MR ZWRGFF:  Chris, correct ne if I'm 12 adding the word and approval . So the applicant shall
13 wong, the building plans are nore conprehensive than 13 submit final landscaping plans to the planning
14 sinply the architectural plans. 14 director who will review an approval to deternine that
15 MR HUSSEY: No, well, the architectural |15 they are consistent with site plans listed initem3
16 plans are submtted to the various boards |ike the 16  under procedural history.
17 building inspector to get approval . 17 M ZIRFF  Yes. That's it? Sothat's
18 M ZURGF:  So they have all the 18 the end of the board s conments.
19 details in then? 19 M LEVIN I'mjust finishing the
20 MR HUSSEY:  Yeah. 20 condition that Alison ...
21 MR LEMN So the way | understand this |21 M ZIRGFF: Wl I, you can take your
22 towork -- 22 time. V¢ can go to the public.
23 MS. STEINFELD  Can you talk | ouder? 23 MS. SHKCE He's fast.
24 M LEVIN The way | understand this to |24 MS. STENFELD  Could you read it to the
Page 31 Page 33
1 work is that you have a set of schematic plans that 1 board? Just nake sure that they --
2 we'vetaken it to a schematic |evel, and that we've 2 M5. SHKCE O course.
3 all agreed that this is the building that is going to 3 MR SCHMRTZ |If you want ne to --
4 be built. The next step would be to do construction 4 MS. SELKCE It's pretty clear. | think
5 docunents, (s and we submt those (s not only for 5 | could have read his handwiting.
6 the building inspector to see if they conply with code 6 M SCHMRTZ \Véll, thank you. That's
7 but tothe planning director to make sure that the 7 very nice of you to say. "Prior to the commencenent
8 plans conformto the plan set that goes along with 8 of construction, the applicants shall have entered
9 this. 9 into a ground |ease of the site creating the Iot
10 MR ZURCFF:  So altogether, are those 10 referenced initem8 of the findings, and shall record
11 considered the architectural plans? 11 with Norfolk Registry of Deeds a notice of said ground
12 MR LEMN Yes. 12 lease. The applicant shall provide evidence to the
13 M ZWIRFF.  They are. 13 planning director of the recording of the notice of
14 M5, SELKCE | nean, in a way you 14 ground | ease."
15 wouldn't need that first sentence at all because the 15 M ZURCFF:  Yeah, | guess that will
16  second sentence covers -- 16 work.
17 MS. PALERMD | think if for some reason | 17 Al right. Thank you. Public comments
18 this is necessary for the building inspector, I 18 about the decision or the waivers? There are none.
19 wouldn't take the sentence out because the buildi ng 19  ay.
20 inspector inspects the building and says, actually, 20 M. ALLARE I'mSaralynn Allaire from
21 this didn't come out exactly. You've put in three 21 the town neeting, and | just want to reiterate the
22 staircases instead of two. |'mjust saying 22 town neeting menbers' objection to the project based
23 hypot hetically. 23 onsize that's intermof the nunber of units. And |
24 MR LEVIN They would look at it before | 24 think you're wanting to take a whol e Hancock \illage
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1 approach, so you need to think about the other 1 MR ZURCFF Yes or no?
2 devel opnents that are going on and proposed in 2 MR HUSSEY: | would vote in favor.
3 addition to this one. 3 M ZRCFF  Lark?
4 A'so, the infill buildings, you know 4 M5. PALERMD  Yes, | also vote in favor
5 arejust conpletely out of place. Your consultant, as 5 of the grant.
6 | recall, saidthat they interfered with the flow of 6 M ZURCFF:  And based on your
7 the whole project. | realize they nmay go at sone 7 interpretation of the law notw thstanding the fact
8 point. And then the single building is just massive 8 that ny vote doesn't matter, | also amwlling to
9 insize, bothinterns of footprint and height. So | 9 approve the project as presented, and | do appreciate
10 just would -- and Steve has previously said that there |10 that the devel oper nade sone conpromses. | sincerely
11 is precedent for reducing the size of a project by a 11 hope that the alternative project is pursued as has
12 group such as yours, and so | just ask that you 12 been pronised because, again, the peer reviewer did
13 consider that. 13 reconmend that the infill buildings would be -- it
14 M ZURGFF: VeI, | appreciate your 14 woul d be better served if they weren't there. That
15 conment. \¢'ve always been aware of the public's 15 wll be subject to the sitting board, whoever it is,
16 feeling about the project, but | do think that we have |16 in your pursuit of that project.
17 had our peer reviewers review everything. The density |17 M. SHKCE So you'll have to close the
18 of the project, the nunber of units and the size of 18 hearing --
19 the project is sonething that we did consider, we did 19 MS. STEINFELD.  Excuse ne, two things?
20 get it to be smaller, but in ny opinion, we have taken |20 MR ZURCFF.  Alison, of course.
21 all of that into consideration given the mandate that 21 MS. STENFELD  Before you close the
22 was given to us by the statute. And inny opinion, in |22 hearing. Qheis | just want to in the past the board
23 spite of the fact that | may al so have objections to 23 | believe has always voted the waivers. | don't know
24 excise, the statute nandates what we have gone 24 if that's necessary. Attorney Schwartz?

Page 35 Page 37
1 through. Qur peer reviewers have given us the 1 MR ZURCFF: V¢ have gone through the
2 feedback that vwe were required to get, and | think 2 waivers already.
3 that we have reached an anicabl e decision based on 3 Ms. STEENFELD:  But there was no vote.
4 what we have been given to work wth. 4 | don't knowif it's necessary.
5 Wiat ny personal feelings are, what your | 5 MR ZURCFF 'l put it to the board.
6 personal feelings are have sone bearing, but not 6 It'Il beontherecord. Personally, | vote that we've
7 enough to overturn the statute. That's ny opinion. 7 gone through the waivers. | have no objection to the
8 Based on what we have, | think that 8 waivers. They're pretty muich the sane waivers that
9 unless we have something el se to deal with this 9 wvere granted on a simlar project, and they have been
10 evening, and subject to the revisions that have been 10 vetted by the planning and buil ding departnents.
11 proposed for the final decision, the board can express |11 MS. SELKCE But the building
12 their opinions on whether they want to accept this as 12 conmissi oner who had actual |y asked to add one which
13  the decision of the board or not, and it has to be 13 they did about the width of the (inaudible.)
14 unaninmous or ngjority. It's anmjority. 14 M ZURFF  So with that being said, |
15 M SCHMRTZ M understanding is that |15 vote in favor of granting the waivers that are
16 in a 40B decision -- in a 40A decision when you have a |16 presented as part of the decision.
17 three-menber board it has to be unaninous. In a 40B 17 MR HUJSSEY: | concur.
18 decision, it can be two out of the three. 18 MS. PALERMD | concur.
19 MR HUSSEY: | stand corrected. 19 M ZRCFF:  So the record will show
20 THE QOURT REPCRTER | can't hear you. 20 that it is voted on, the waivers are approved. The
21 MR HUSSEY: | stand corrected. M. 21 decision to be nodified is approved.
22 Schwartz is right. 22 MS. STENELD As nodified -- has been
23 M ZRFF  So, Chris? 23 modified. Ch, I'msorry, yes.
24 MR HUSSEY:  Yes. 24 M ZURCFF:  There are a coupl e of snall
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1 tweaks. ;
2 M. SELKCE  Yeah, | would think a vote | CERTI FI CATE
3 toauthorize you to signit whenit's infina form 4

) . . 5  COWDNWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
4 M ZIRCFF: \éll, that's why | said 6  COUNTY OF NORFOLK, SS
5 it's subject to those nodifications. | guess | should 7

‘ I, Christine D. Bl ankenship, a Professional

6 a_Sk _the board f.OI’. approval - Wll the board approve ny 8 Court Reporter and Notary Public in and for the
7 signing the decision as nodified at the end? Commonweal th of Massachusetts, do hereby certify
8 MR HESEY: | will 9 that the foregoing hearing was taken before ne on

' o Cctober 24, 2018. The said testimony was taken
9 M. PALERMD | will. 10 audi ographi cally by nyself and then transcribed
10 MR ZURCFEE So that is a final vote of under ny direction. To the best of ny know edge,

. 11 the within transcript is a conplete, true and
11 the board. M. Levin. accurate record of said deposition.
12 MR LEMN | would just like to thank, 12
. . . | am not connected by blood or narriage
13 in particular, you and your board, the planning staff, 13 with any of the said parties, nor interested
14 especially as well, the neighbors and everyone who directly or indirectly in the mtter of
. . . . 14 controversy.
15 contributed to the consideration of our project, both 15
16 interns of constructive, you know criticismand 16 I'n witness wher eof, have hereunto set ny
17 other that I, you know | sincerely believe ve ended . 2323 and Notary S?a' thi E23R §f December,
18 up with a better project than what we came in wth as 18 ¢ 5
19 far ago as we did. | don't renenber. It's been a S— — -
19 Christine D. Bl ankenship
20 couple of years now Notary Public
21 MR ZWRCFF:  2016. 20 My Commi ssi on Expires:
August 3, 2023
22 M LEMN 2016. So a couple of years |,
23 ago with a pause, but nonetheless, it was a |ong 22
24 enough process to hatch a better plan, and | want to 2431
Page 39

1 thank everyone for that.
2 M ZURCFF:  And | appreciate the
3 devel oper working with us. That being said, the fact
4 that it took me so long to get here is evidence that
5 the trafficis getting worse, and | wish there were
6 less buildings going onin Brookline, but we are
7 conpelled to do our duty. So I thank you all for
8 comng. | thank the public for its input.
9 M5, SHKCE You're officially closing
10 the hearing.
1 M ZRGFF: | amofficially closing the
12 hearing, and this neeting i s now adj ourned. Thank you
13 very much.
14
15 (Whereupon the hearing was concl uded at
16 7:50 p.m)
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
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